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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 37"Annual General Meeting of the Members of Kumar Autocast
Limited will be held on Friday the 30" day of September, 2022 at 12:30 P.M. at the registered office of
the company situated at C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab to transact the following

businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

ITEM NO.1: TO RECEIVE & ADOPT AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
OTHER REPORTS

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022, Statement of Profit and

Loss for the year ended on that date, together with Report of the Auditor’s and Director’s thereon.

ITEM NO.2: RE-APPOINTMENT OF SH. ASHISH KUMAR SOOD

To re-appoint Director in place of Sh. Ashish Kumar Sood (DIN: 00672179), Whole Time Director,
who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offer

himself for re-appointment.

ITEM NO.3: RE-APPOINTMENT OF SH. AJAY KUMAR SOOD

To re-appoint Director in place of Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood (DIN: 00685585), Whole Time Director, who
retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offer himself

for re-appointment.
ITEM NO.4: RE-APPOINTMENT OF SH. ARUN KUMAR SOOD
To re-appoint Director in place of Sh. Arun Kumar Sood (DIN: 00685937), Managing Director, who

retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offer himself

for re-appointment.




ITEM NO.5: APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

To consider the appointment of Statutory Auditors of the company for the Financial Year 2022-23 and to
fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without

modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139 and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
other applicable provisions, if any, M/s VINAY & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana be
and are hereby appointed as the statutory auditors of the company for the period of 5 years, commencing
from the conclusion of this 37™ Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 42™ AGM at such

remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company.”
SPECIAL BUSINESS

ITEM NO. 6: BLANKET APPROVAL FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary

Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 and in terms of applicable provisions of Listing Agreement executed with the Stock
Exchanges (including any amendment, modification or re-enactment thereof), and also pursuant to the
consent of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors vide resolutions passed in their respective
meetings, the approval of the Company be and is hereby for entering into the following proposed Related
Party Transactions at Arm Length Price with respect to sale and purchase of goods and raw material by
and from Kumar Autocast Limited for the financial year 2022-23 upto the maximum per annum amounts

as appended in table below:

Sr. Name of the | Relationship Maximum Value of Transaction
No Related Party per Annum
1 Kumar Exports | Directors having Significant Interest 50 Crore
2 Kumar Export | Directors having Significant Interest 15 Crore
Industries  Pvt
Ltd




ITEM NO: 7. APPOINTMENT OF MS. RITU MEHRA (DIN: 09445664) AS INDEPENDENT
WOMAN DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 & 152 read with schedule IV and
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions,
sections, rules of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force) and the Securities Exchange Board of India(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions, the consent of the shareholders be and is
hereby accorded to appoint Ms. Ritu Mehra (DIN: 09445664) as an Independent Woman Director of the
Company to hold office for a term of 5 consecutive years w.e.f. 30.09.2022.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the sitting fees shall be paid to the independent Director as approved by
the board of directors subject to the maximum limit as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made thereunder.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood, Whole time Director (DIN: 00685585)of the
Company, be and is hereby authorized to comply with all the other legal and procedural formalities in this
matter to make the above resolution effective.”

ITEM NO. 8: TO APPROVE REAPPOINTMENT OF MR. AJAY KUMAR SOOD, WHOLE TIME
DIRECTOR & INCREASE IN REMUNERATION FROM RS. 3,50,000 PER MONTH TO RS.
3,75,000 W.E.F 01°" OF OCTOBER 2022.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special

Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 197 and 203 and all other applicable
provisions if any ,of the companies Act , 2013, (“the Act”) read with schedule V to the said act and the
companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules,2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for time being in force) and as per the Articles of Association
of the Company and subject to such other approval(s) or sanction(s) as may be prescribed, consent of the
shareholders of the company be and is hereby accorded to reappoint Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood as Whole
Time Director of the company for 3 years w.e.f. 01.10.2022 and increase in remuneration from Rs.
3,50,000 (Rupees Three Lakhs Fifty Thousand Only) per month to Rs. 3,75,000(Rupees Three Lakhs
Seventy Five Thousand Only) including House Rent Allowance Rs. 50,000/-(Rs. Fifty Thousand
Only) plus all perquisites or such other limit as may be ascertained under the provision of Schedule V of

the Act, payable as per rules and policies of the company for 3 years w.e.f. 01.10.2022.


https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood shall also be eligible to the following benefits

which shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration:

Sr. No | Remuneration Details

| Basic Salary Rs. 3,25,000/- Per Month

1I House Rent Allowance Rs. 50,000/- Per Month

1T Perquisites Perquisites will be allowed in addition to salary, as mentioned
below:

a) Medical Reimbursement | Reimbursement of actual Medical expenses incurred in India
and/or abroad and including hospitalization, nursing home and
surgical charges and will also pay health insurance premium for
himself and his family subject to the Income Tax Act, 1961.

b) Leave Travel Concession | Reimbursement of actual travelling expenses for proceeding on
leave once in a year in respect of himself and his family in
accordance with the rules of the Company.

c) Club Fees Reimbursement of membership fee of any club in India and/or
abroad including admission and life membership fee subject a
maximum of two (2) clubs.

d) Personal Accident Premium not to exceed Rs. 15,000/- Per Annum.

e) Car & Telephone Free Use of Company’s car for official work as well as for
personal purposes and telephone at company’s cost.

f) Gratuity Company will pay gratuity at the rate of half month’s salary for
each completed year of service.

g) Contribution to Provident | Company will contribute to provident fund, superannuation fund

Fund and Annuity fund as per company’s policy but subject to Income
Tax Act, 1961.
h) Insurance Policy Life Insurance policy having the employer & employee

relationship benefit, provides life cover up to Rs. 1.50 Crores and

premium shall not to exceed Rs. 25.00/- Lacs Per Annum.

*Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income-Tax Rules, wherever applicable and in absence of any such

rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT The Board and Directors of the company be and hereby is authorized to

approve the terms and conditions of re-appointment and make changes in the terms of re-appointment




including remuneration and do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary and incidental to give

effect to this resolution.

ITEM NO. 9: TO APPROVE REAPPOINTMENT OF MR. ASHISH KUMAR SOOD, WHOLE
TIME DIRECTOR & INCREASE IN REMUNERATION FROM RS. 3,50,000 PER MONTH TO
RS. 3,75,000 W.E.F 01°" OF OCTOBER 2022

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special

Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 197 and 203 and all other applicable
provisions if any ,of the companies Act , 2013, (“the Act”) read with schedule V to the said act and the
companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules,2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for time being in force) and as per the Articles of Association
of the Company and subject to such other approval(s) or sanction(s) as may be prescribed, consent of the
shareholders of the company be and is hereby accorded to reappoint Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood as Whole
Time Director of the company for 3 years w.e.f. 01.10.2022 and increase in remuneration from Rs.
3,50,000 (Rupees Three Lakhs Fifty Thousand Only) per month to Rs. 3,75,000(Rupees Three Lakhs
Seventy Five Thousand Only) including House Rent Allowance Rs. 50,000/-(Rs. Fifty Thousand
Only) plus all perquisites or such other limit as may be ascertained under the provision of Schedule V of

the Act, payable as per rules and policies of the company for 3 years w.e.f. 01.10.2022.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sh. Ashish Kumar Sood shall also be eligible to the following benefits

which shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration:

Sr. No | Remuneration Details

| Basic Salary Rs. 3,25,000/- Per Month

I House Rent Allowance Rs. 50,000/- Per Month

111 Perquisites Perquisites will be allowed in addition to salary, as mentioned
below:

a) Medical Reimbursement | Reimbursement of actual Medical expenses incurred in India

and/or abroad and including hospitalization, nursing home and
surgical charges and will also pay health insurance premium for

himself and his family subject to the Income Tax Act, 1961.

b) Leave Travel Concession | Reimbursement of actual travelling expenses for proceeding on

leave once in a year in respect of himself and his family in
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accordance with the rules of the Company.

c) Club Fees Reimbursement of membership fee of any club in India and/or
abroad including admission and life membership fee subject a

maximum of two (2) clubs.

d) Personal Accident Premium not to exceed Rs. 15,000/- Per Annum.

e) Car & Telephone Free Use of Company’s car for official work as well as for

personal purposes and telephone at company’s cost.

f) Gratuity Company will pay gratuity at the rate of half month’s salary for

each completed year of service.

2) Contribution to Provident | Company will contribute to provident fund, superannuation fund
Fund and Annuity fund as per company’s policy but subject to Income

Tax Act, 1961.

h) Insurance Policy Life Insurance policy having the employer & employee

relationship benefit, provides life cover up to Rs. 1.50 Crores and

premium shall not to exceed Rs. 25.00/- Lacs Per Annum.

*Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income-Tax Rules, wherever applicable and in absence of any such
rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT The Board and Directors of the company be and hereby is authorized to
approve the terms and conditions of re-appointment and make changes in the terms of re-appointment
including remuneration and do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary and incidental to give

effect to this resolution.

ITEM NO. 10: TO APPROVE REAPPOINTMENT OF MR. ARUN KUMAR SOOD, MANAGING
DIRECTOR & INCREASE IN REMUNERATION FROM RS. 3,50,000 PER MONTH TO RS.
3,75,000 W.E.F 01°" OF OCTOBER 2022.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special

Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 197 and 203 and all other applicable
provisions if any ,of the companies Act , 2013, (“the Act”) read with schedule V to the said act and the
companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules,2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for time being in force) and as per the Articles of Association
of the Company and subject to such other approval(s) or sanction(s) as may be prescribed, consent of the
shareholders of the company be and is hereby accorded to reappoint Mr. Arun Kumar Sood as
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Managing Director of the company for 3 years w.e.f. 01.10.2022 and increase in remuneration from
Rs. 3,50,000 (Rupees Three Lakhs Fifty Thousand Only) per month to Rs. 3,75,000(Rupees Three
Lakhs Seventy Five Thousand Only) including House Rent Allowance Rs. 50,000/-(Rs. Fifty
Thousand Only) plus all perquisites or such other limit as may be ascertained under the provision of

Schedule V of the Act, payable as per rules and policies of the company for 3 years w.e.f. 01.10.2022.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sh. Arun Kumar Sood shall also be eligible to the following benefits

which shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration:

Sr. No | Remuneration Details

I Basic Salary Rs. 3,25,000/- Per Month

II House Rent Allowance Rs. 50,000/- Per Month

I Perquisites Perquisites will be allowed in addition to salary, as mentioned
below:

a) Medical Reimbursement | Reimbursement of actual Medical expenses incurred in India

and/or abroad and including hospitalization, nursing home and
surgical charges and will also pay health insurance premium for

himself and his family subject to the Income Tax Act, 1961.

b) Leave Travel Concession | Reimbursement of actual travelling expenses for proceeding on
leave once in a year in respect of himself and his family in

accordance with the rules of the Company.

c) Club Fees Reimbursement of membership fee of any club in India and/or
abroad including admission and life membership fee subject a

maximum of two (2) clubs.

d) Personal Accident Premium not to exceed Rs. 15,000/- Per Annum.

e) Car & Telephone Free Use of Company’s car for official work as well as for

personal purposes and telephone at company’s cost.

f) Gratuity Company will pay gratuity at the rate of half month’s salary for

each completed year of service.

g) Contribution to Provident | Company will contribute to provident fund, superannuation fund
Fund and Annuity fund as per company’s policy but subject to Income

Tax Act, 1961.

h) Insurance Policy Life Insurance policy having the employer & employee
relationship benefit, provides life cover up to Rs. 1.50 Crores and

premium shall not to exceed Rs. 25.00/- Lacs Per Annum.




*Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income-Tax Rules, wherever applicable and in absence of any such

rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT The Board and Directors of the company be and hereby is authorized to
approve the terms and conditions of re-appointment and make changes in the terms of re-appointment
including remuneration and do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary and incidental to give

effect to this resolution.

By Order of the Board
For Kumar Autocast Limited
Place: Ludhiana
Date: 07.09.2022
Sd/-
(Ajay Kumar Sood)
Whole Time Director
(DIN: - 00685585)

House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road,
Urban Estate Ludhiana, PB
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Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
on a poll instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. The proxy,
in order to be effective must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the Meeting. The

Blank Proxy form is enclosed.

2. In Compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules 2015, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listed
Obligations And Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Company has provided a facility to
the members to exercise their votes electronically through the electronic voting service facility arranged
by Central Depository Services (India) Limited. The facility for voting through ballot paper, will also be
made available at the AGM and the members attending the AGM who have not already cast their votes
by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes

again.

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are
requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and

vote in their behalf at the Meeting.

4. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may
appoint single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or

shareholder.

5. A statement giving the relevant details of the Directors seeking re-appointment and appointment
under Item No. 2, 3, 4, 7, 8, 9 and 10 of the accompanying Notice is annexed herewith in explanatory

statement.

6. Members are requested to intimate their queries, if any, related to accounts at least seven days in

advance of meeting so that information can be made available and furnished at meeting.
7. All documents referred to in the notice, unless otherwise specifically stated will be available for

members for inspection at the registered office of the Company between 02.00 pm to 04.00 pm from the
date hereof upto the date of Annual General Meeting.
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8. The register of members and share transfer books shall remain closed from Tuesday the 20™

September, 2022 to Friday 30" September, 2022 (Both Days inclusive).

9. Miss Kiranpreet Kaur proprietor of M/s Kiranpreet & Associates has been appointed as scrutinizer

Jor providing the report on results of poll/vote for the resolution passed during the AGM.

10. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in Securities Market. Members holding shares in physical
Jorm are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to the Company Skyline Financial Services Private

Limited.

11. The Result of the resolutions passed at the AGM of the Company will be declared within 48 working
hours of Conclusion of AGM. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer Report shall be placed on

Company’s website and on the website of CDSL and will be communicated to the stock exchanges.

12. M/s Kiranpreet & Associates, Company Secretaries, have been appointed as the scrutinizer to
scrutinize the e-voting process in fair and transparent manner (including the ballot forms received from
members who do not have access to the e-voting process). The scrutinizer shall within a period of three
working days from the conclusion of e-voting period, unblock the votes in presence of at least two
witnesses not in employment of the company and make a report of the votes cast in favour or against, if

any, forthwith to the chairman of the company.

13. In support of the Green Initiative, your Company proposes to send the documents like Notice calling
the General Meetings and Annual Report containing Financial Statements, Director’s Report etc and
other communications in electronic form. We request you to update your email address with your
Depository Participant/Company/RTA to ensure that the Annual Report and other communications

reach you on your preferred email.

14. The Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent through electronic mode only to the members whose email
addresses are registered with the Company/ Depository Participant(s), unless any member has requested
Jor a physical copy of the report. The members who have not registered their email addresses, physical

copies of the Annual Report 2021-22 are being sent by permitted mode.
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(iv)

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

(i)

(i1)

(iii)

The voting period begins on 27" September, 2022 (9:00 a.m.) and ends on 29" September,
2022(5:00 p.m.). During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 19" September,
2022 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for
voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at
the meeting venue.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility
to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed
that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a
negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of
multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants.
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the
ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and
convenience of participating in e-voting process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on_e-

Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in_demat

mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email 1d in their demat

accounts in order to access e-Yoting facility.
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Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in

Demat mode
with CDSL

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to
login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System
Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user
will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e.
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
availableathttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode

with NSDL

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services.
Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able
to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS
“Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
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NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode)
login
through
their
Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website

Jor casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to

use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical

issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login
securities in Demat mode with CDSL | can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a

request at
helpdesk.evoting @cdslindia.comor contact
at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login
securities in Demat mode with NSDL | can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
Jree no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

(v)  Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than individual shareholders holding
in Demat form & physical shareholders.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
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2) Click on “Shareholders” module.
3) Now enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registered with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com
and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be
used.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual
and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical
shareholders)

o Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the

sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact
Company/RTA.

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy

Bank Jormat) as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in
Details order to login.
OR  Date e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or
of Birth company, please enter the member id / folio number in the
(DOB) Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (3).
(vi)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
(vii)  Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company

selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN 220907103 <KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED> on which you
choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the
same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else
to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM?” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on
the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and
the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as
prompted by the system.

Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —Remote Voting

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and
Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in
the “Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity
should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting @cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for

which they wish to vote on.
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o The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting @cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to
cast their vote.

e A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

e Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution/Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the
email address viz; asood@kumarautocast.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not

uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with
your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending EGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-
Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting @cdslindia.com or contact at 022-toll
Jree no. 1800 22 55 33.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A
Wing, 25th Floor, MarathonFuturex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel
(East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on toll
Jree no. 1800 22 55 33.
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CIN : L27101PB1985PL.C006100

| ICAL
KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

Regd, Office & Works : C-179, FOCAL POINT, PHASE VI, LUDHIANA-141 010.

Ph. : 91-161-2672506, 2671428 Fax No. : 91-161-5029829

E-mail: asood@kurarautocast.com, ajaysocod@kumarexports.com

www.kumarautocast.com

ISO
9001

Quality
Management

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,

2013:

ITEM NO. 2,3 & 4 OF THE ORDINARY BUSINESS

INFORMATION AND DETAILS REGARDING DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT IN
THE ENSUING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

Name of the Director ASHISH AJAY KUMAR | ARUN KUMAR
KUMAR SOOD SOOD SOOD

Director Identification Number (DIN) 00672179 00685585 00685937

Date of Birth 28/01/1959 26/08/1954 13/12/1948

Nationality Indian Indian Indian

Date of Appointment on Board 01/10/2002 01/10/2007 01/10/2002

Qualification B.tech LLB MA Economics

No. of Shares Held 1640100 1352280 3525900

List of Directorships held in other NIL NIL NIL

Companies (excluding foreign, private

and Section 8 Companies)

Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit NIL NIL NIL

and Stakeholders’ Relationship

Committees across Public Companies

Relationship with other Directors Related to Mr. Related to Mr. Related to Mr.
Ajay Kumar Arun Kumar Ajay Kumar
Sood and Mr. Sood and Mr. Sood and Mr.
Arun Kumar Ashish Kumar Ashish Kumar
Sood Sood Sood

None of the other Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the company/their relatives is concerned
or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. 2, 3 and 4.
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ITEM NO. 7 OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS

The Board proposes to appoint Ms. Ritu Mehra as an Independent Woman Director of the company
pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 & 152 read with schedule IV and Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of the Companies
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re- enactment thereof for the time being in force).

In order to view the growing complexities in the business and regulatory requirement, the Board of
Directors of the Company has accorded their consents to appoint Ms. Ritu Mehra, as an Independent
Woman Director subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The Company has
received consent from the Independent Director and also declaration confirming that she is not disqualified
from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and meet the
criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Section 150(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 states that the appointment of the Independent Director shall
be approved by the company in its general meeting.

Accordingly, the Directors recommends this Resolution for approval of the shareholders.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives are interested
or concerned in the Resolution except to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company.

ITEM NO. 8.9 & 10 OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS

The members may note that based on the recommendations of the board of directors of the company at
their meeting held on 07.09.2022, approve the reappointment and Revision/Increase of remuneration of
Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood, Whole Time Director, Mr. Arun Kumar Sood, Managing Director & Ashish Kumar
Sood, Whole Time Director of the company under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, from Rs.
3,50,000 (Three Lakhs Fifty Thousand Only) per month to Rs. 3,75,000 (Rupees Three Lakhs Seventy
Five Thousand Only) per month each w.e.f 01 October, 2022 including House Rent Allowance (HRA)
Rs. 50,000 (Rupees Fifty Thousand Only) plus all perquisites for the period of 3 years valid till
30.09.2025.

Therefore the Board of Directors and Nomination & Remuneration Committee, subject to such approval of
shareholders is proposing to reappoint and increase the remuneration of Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood, Mr. Arun
Kumar Sood & Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood for the period of 3 years valid till 30.09.2025 on a maximum
remuneration of Rs. 3,75,000 (Rupees Three Lakhs Seventy Five Thousand Only) p.m. or such other limit
as may be ascertained under the provisions of Schedule V of the Act ,payable as per rules and policies of
the company.

Since the company does not having adequate profits to make the managerial remuneration as per Section
198 of the companies act, 2013, the above proposal requires approval of shareholders of the company to
pay managerial remuneration as per Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the proposal is before
shareholders for approval through special resolution.
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Statement Required pursuant to provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is given below,
L GENERAL INFORMATION:
1. Nature of Industry:

The company carries the business of casting Automotive & Locomotive (Railways) Parts and provides
casting of several OEM products to leading global automotives players in India as well as in abroad.

2. Date and Expected date of commencement of Commercial Production:
The Commercial Production of the company’s product is started in the year of 1985.

3. In Case of New Companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved
by financial institution appearing in the prospectus:

Not Applicable.
4. Financial Performance Based on the given indicators:

Company incurred the Loss before tax during the financial year 2021-22 of Rs 112.87 Lakhs as compared
to profit before tax of Rs. 148.64 Lakhs during the financial year 2020-21.

5. Foreign Investment and Collaboration:

Not Applicable

II. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE (Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood):

1. Background Details:

Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood; is the Whole Time Director of the company. During this Period he has served the
company with best of his capabilities. He is the person of immense enthusiasm and dynamism possessing
sharp ability for business decision making. He carries with himself a vast business experience. Mr. Ajay
Kumar Sood completed his Higher Education from Punjab University and is holding degree in LLB from
Kurukshetra University. His association with the Company supported by strong determination, vast
knowledge and 33 years of experience in the field of law and practice is expected to be highly beneficial
for identifying potential growth plans and projects for business expansion. Currently, he is the (Director
Commercial) Marketing and Finance in the Company.

2. Past Remuneration:

Past Remuneration is Rs. 3,50,000/- Per Month Including House Rent allowance plus other Incentive and
Perquisites as per the company policies.
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3. Recognition or Awards:
Not applicable
4, Job Profile and Suitability of the Appointee:

Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood has been in managerial position since last few years and has been contributing in
his role towards achievement of the common objectives of the organization. Hence, on the basis of the
recommendation of the Board along with Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood
is a suitable candidate for his re-appointment as Whole Time Director of the Company for a period of 3
years w.e.f. 01.10.2022.

5. Remuneration Proposed:

The appointee will be paid remuneration not exceeding Rs 3,75,000/- (Rupees Three Lakhs Seventy Five
Thousand Only) p.m., such other limit as may be ascertained under the provisions of Schedule V of the
Act, Plus other Perquisites & Incentives as per company policies, payable as per rules and policies of the
company, for the period of 3 years valid till 30.09.2025.

6. Comparative Remuneration profile with respect to the Industry, size of the company, profile of the
position of the company.

Taking into account the size of the company, industry benchmark in general, profile, position,
responsibilities, capabilities and the involvement of Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood in the company and the
proposed Remuneration is reasonable and in line with the Remuneration levels in the industry, across the
industry and befits his position.

7. Pecuniary relationship directly with the company or relationship with the managerial personnel if,
any:

Except for the proposed Remuneration Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood does not have any pecuniary relationship
with the company, although Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood is relative of the Mr. Arun Kumar Sood, Managing
Director & Ashish Kumar Sood, Whole Time Director.

I11. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE (Mr. Arun Kumar Sood):
1. Background Details:

Mr. Arun Kumar Sood; is the Managing Director of the company. During this Period he has served the
company with best of his capabilities. Mr. Arun Kumar Sood completed his Graduation from Punjab
University and holds a Post Graduation degree in MA Economics from Punjab University. The wide
exposure has made him wise and result oriented person adding to his dedication and determination to take
the Company to great heights involving widespread growth and prosperity. Currently he holds the position
of Production Director (Technical) having expertise in castings.
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2. Past Remuneration:

Past Remuneration is Rs. 3,50,000/- Per Month Including House Rent allowance plus other Incentive and
Perquisites as per the company policies.

3. Recognition or Awards:
Not applicable
4. Job Profile and Suitability of the Appointee:

Mr. Arun Kumar Sood has been in managerial position since last few years and has been contributing in
his role towards achievement of the common objectives of the organization. Hence, on the basis of the
recommendation of the Board, Mr. Arun Kumar Sood is a suitable candidate for his re-appointment as
Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 01.10.2022.

5. Remuneration Proposed:

The appointee will be paid remuneration not exceeding Rs 3,75,000/- (Rupees Three Lakhs Seventy Five
Thousand Only) p.m., such other limit as may be ascertained under the provisions of Schedule V of the
Act, Plus other Perquisites & Incentives as per company policies, payable as per rules and policies of the
company, for the period of 3 years valid till 30.09.2025.

6. Comparative Remuneration profile with respect to the Industry, size of the company, profile of the
position of the company.

Taking into account the size of the company, industry benchmark in general, profile, position,
responsibilities, capabilities and the involvement of Mr. Arun Kumar Sood in the company and the
proposed Remuneration is reasonable and in line with the Remuneration levels in the industry, across the
industry and befits his position.

7. Pecuniary relationship directly with the company or relationship with the managerial personnel if ,any:
Except for the proposed Remuneration Mr. Arun Kumar Sood does not have any pecuniary relationship
with the company, although Mr. Arun Kumar Sood is relative of the Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood, Whole Time
Director & Ashish Kumar Sood, Whole Time Director.

IV. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE (Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood):

1. Background Details:

Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood; is the Whole Time Director of the company. During this Period he has served the
company with best of his capabilities. . He is a Graduate in BA (Arts) from Punjab University. He has been
a crucial part of the Company since its incorporation and his active participation in the affairs of the

Company in the past 28 years is expected to be more beneficial as the Company grows and expands its
business plans. Currently, he is the Director Purchase {Relationship Manager} in the Company.
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2. Past Remuneration:

Past Remuneration is Rs. 3,50,000/- Per Month Including House Rent allowance plus other Incentive and
Perquisites as per the company policies.

3. Recognition or Awards:
Not applicable
4. Job Profile and Suitability of the Appointee:

Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood has been in managerial position since last few years and has been contributing in
his role towards achievement of the common objectives of the organization. Hence, on the basis of the
recommendation of the Board, Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood is a suitable candidate for his re-appointment as
Whole Time Director of the Company for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 01.10.2022.

5. Remuneration Proposed:

The appointee will be paid remuneration not exceeding Rs 3,75,000/- (Rupees Three Lakhs Seventy Five
Thousand Only) p.m., such other limit as may be ascertained under the provisions of Schedule V of the
Act, Plus other Perquisites & Incentives as per company policies, payable as per rules and policies of the
company, for the period of 3 years valid till 30.09.2025.

6. Comparative Remuneration profile with respect to the Industry, size of the company, profile of the
position of the company.

Taking into account the size of the company, industry benchmark in general, profile, position,
responsibilities, capabilities and the involvement of Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood in the company and the
proposed Remuneration is reasonable and in line with the Remuneration levels in the industry, across the
industry and befits his position.

7. Pecuniary relationship directly with the company or relationship with the managerial personnel if ,any:
Except for the proposed Remuneration Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood does not have any pecuniary relationship
with the company, although Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood is relative of the Mr. Arun Kumar Sood, Managing
Director & Ajay Kumar Sood, Whole Time Director.

IV Other Information

1. Reason of Loss Or Inadequate Profits:

There is lot of new competition in the market, though the size of market is increasing but due to severe
competition and the global economic slowdown leads the current financial results into inadequate profits.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: The company has taken stringent cost

actions and continues to curtail both employee and non employee costs. Also, the management continues
to explore avenues to increase the revenue.
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3. Expected increase in Productivity and Profits :

The company is committed to build the business operations within budget and considering that the
business operates on a going concern basis, it is believed that financial position of the company will
improve in near future.

The Directors recommend the resolutions set in item no 8-10 for approval of shareholders by way of
special resolution.

Memorandum of Interest

None of the Directors, key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are interested in the above proposals
except proposed appointee’s to the extent of their re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
For Kumar Autocast Limited

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 07.09.2022

Sd/-

(Ajay Kumar Sood)

Whole Time Director

(DIN: - 00685585)

House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road,
Urban Estate Ludhiana, Pb
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

Regd. Office: - C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab.
Email Id: asood @kumarautocast.comTelephone No: 0161-2671428
CIN: - L27101PB1985PLC006100
www.kumarautocast.com

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members,

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting their 37" Annual Report on the affairs of the

Company together with the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS.

The Company’s financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2022 is summarized below:

(Amt. in Lacs)

PARTICULARS 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue from operations(Gross) 4306.59 3793.00
Profit before Depreciation, Interest & Tax (PBDIT) -14.88 256.32
Less: Interest & Financial Expenses 37.99 46.94
Profit Before Depreciation & Tax (PBDT) -52.87 209.38
Less: Depreciation 60.00 60.74
Profit Before Tax (PBT) -112.87 148.64
Less: Provision For Taxation - 44.05
Earlier year 0.04 -
Deferred Tax Charge -2.72 -10.02
Add: Deferred Tax Assets - -
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Profit For The Period and After Tax (PAT) -110.19 114.61

Other Comprehensive Income for the year net of Tax -3.24 -15.80
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year -113.43 98.81
Earnings Per Share (Rs.)
-Basic -1.06 1.10
-Diluted -1.06 1.10
Balance Available for Appropriation -113.43 98.81

Less: Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares - -

Tax on Proposed Dividend - -

Transfer to General Reserve - -

Surplus Carried to Balance Sheet -113.43 98.81

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (IND AS) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. For all periods
upto and including the year ending 31*March 2022, the company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with the accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms
of Rule 7 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard, if initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use. Management evaluates all recently issued or revised accounting
standards on an ongoing basis.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:
A. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS:

PRODUCTION & SALES REVIEW:

During the year, the Revenue from operations was Rs. 4306.59 Lacs as against Rs. 3793.00 Lacs in
the previous year. The Company earned other income of Rs. 5.83 Lacs during the year as against Rs.
6.69 Lacs during last year.

PROFITABILITY:

During the current year, the Company incurred loss before depreciation, interest and tax of Rs. 14.88
Lacs as against PBDIT of Rs. 256.32 Lacs in the previous year. After providing for depreciation of Rs.
60.00 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 60.74 Lacs), the loss after tax was Rs. -110.19 Lacs as against profit of
Rs. 114.61 Lacs last year.
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B. RESOURCE UTILISATION:

FIXED ASSETS:

The net fixed assets as at 31* March, 2022 were Rs. 443.58 Lacs as against previous year’s fixed assets
of Rs. 500.88 Lacs. During the year, there was addition of fixed assets amounting to Rs. 2.70 Lacs
Previous Year Rs. 90.63 Lacs.

CURRENT ASSETS:

The net current assets as on 31* March, 2022 were Rs.1658.21 Lakhs as against Rs. 1869.23 Lakhs in
the previous year.

C. FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND LIQUIDITY:

Management believes that the Company’s liquidity and capital resources are sufficient to meet its
expected working capital needs and other anticipated cash requirements. The position of liquidity and
capital resources of the Company is given below: -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

(Amt in Lakhs.)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Beginning of the Year (49.63) (323.54)
End of the Year (221.82) (49.63)
Net Cash provided/(used) by:
- Operating Activities (57.68) 360.01
- Investing Activities 2.54 (73.11)
- Financing Activities (117.05) (12.99)

3. DIVIDEND

During the year under review, the Company has incurred losses, therefore, the Board of Directors of the
company has not recommended any dividend for the year 2021-22.

4. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT-9 as a part of this
Annual Report as ANNEXURE.

28




S. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by
them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act,
2013:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

c) that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the Assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that Directors’ have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

6. COMMENTS ON AUDITORS REPORT

The Audit Reports and the qualifications, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimers are self explanatory
if any made:

(i) By the auditor in his report; and

(i1) By the company secretary in practice in her secretarial audit report.

7. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

8. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES:

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related
parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. The details of material
contracts/ arrangements/ transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended 31st March,2022 is annexed
hereto in Form AQOC-2 and forms part of this report as ANNEXURE-IL.

9. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

NIL amount is transferred to the General Reserve.
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10.

11.

12.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

In accordance with the provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 company has not having
any unpaid dividend or excess share application amount in the book of accounts. As company has not
declared any dividend in the previous year, hence no amount is transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT:

No material changes and commitment affecting the financial position of the company occurred between
the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and the date of the report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Energy conservation continues to be an area of major emphasis in our Company. Efforts are made to
optimize the energy cost while carrying out the manufacturing operations. Particulars with respect to
conservation of energy and other areas as per Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are annexed hereto and form part of this report as ANNEXURE III
and is attached to this report.

13. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the
said provisions as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

14. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the
Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by the Company.

15. FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12), OTHER THAN THOSE

WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT.

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Board of Directors of the Company.

16. DETAILS OF APPLICATION / ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY

AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

Neither any application was made nor any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 (31 of 2016) during the financial year 2021-22.
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17.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN
FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS
THEREOF

As Company has not done any one time settlement during the year under review hence no disclosure is
required.

18. DETAILS OF MONEY ACCEPTED FROM DIRECTOR

19.

During the period under review, the Company has not accepted money in the form of unsecured loan from
the director or relative of the director of the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.

20. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Amt. in Lacs)

PARTICULARS 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18

Revenue from 4312.42 3799.69 3492.42 4380.90 3765.55
operations(Gross)

TOTAL INCOME 4312.42 3799.69 3492.42 4380.90 3765.55

Earnings  before (14.88) 256.32 293 318.84 229.83
Depreciation,
Finance Cost &

Tax expenses
(EBDIT)

Less: Depreciation 60.00 60.74 55.85 51.17 45.72
&

Amortization

Finance Cost 37.99 46.94 47.93 52.14 37.59

PROFIT FOR (110.19) 114.61 136.22 156.86 106.10
THE YEAR

Equity Dividend% - - - - -

Dividend payout - - - - -

Equity Share 1037.40 1037.40 518.70 518.70 518.70
Capital

Equity Share - - - - -
Suspense Account
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21.

22.

23.

24,

Equity Share - - - - -
warrants
Reserves & Surplus 195.48 302.42 722.31 586.71 429.86
Net Worth 1232.88 1339.82 1241.01 1105.41 948.56
Borrowings (Long 454.09 534.52 434.95 680.60 564.61
term & Short
term)
Gross Fixed Assets 747.66 744.96 673.19 627.42 500.05
Net Fixed Assets 443.58 500.88 483.97 494.03 416.05
Investments - - - - -
Face Value Per 10 10 10 10 10
Share
EPS(Basic & (1.06) 1.10 2.63 3.02 2.02
Diluted)

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted and does not intend to accept any deposits from the public. As at 31"
March, 2022 there are no outstanding/unclaimed deposits from the public.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

NUMBER OF CASES FILED, IF ANY, AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has Zero tolerance towards any action on the part of any one which may fall under the
ambit of ‘Sexual Harassment’ at workplace, and is fully committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of
every women working with the Company. The Policy framed by the Company in this regard provides for
protection against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for prevention and redressal of such
complaints.

PARTICULARS NO. OF COMPLAINTS TO PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSEMENT
COMMITEE

Number of Complaints pending as on beginning of the financial year NIL
Number of Complaints filed during the financial year NIL

Number of Complaints pending as on the end of the financial year NIL
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25.

26.

27.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has well defined internal control system. The Company takes abundant care to design,
review and monitor the working of internal control system. Internal audit in the organization is an
independent appraisal activity and all significant issues are brought to the attention of the Audit Committee
of the Board.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or
operation were observed.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your company ensure to evolve and follow the corporate governance guidelines and best practices
diligently, not just to boost long-term shareholder value, but also to respect rights of the minority. We
consider it our inherent responsibility to disclose timely and accurate information regarding the operations
and performance, leadership, and governance of the Company.

Pursuant to the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Corporate Governance Report along with the Certificate
from a Practicing Company Secretary, certifying compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance for
F.Y 2021-22, form part of this report as ANNEXURE VII.

A. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and strategy
apart from other Board business.

The notice of Board meeting is given well in advance to all the Directors. Usually, meetings of the
Board are held in Registered Office, Ludhiana to discuss the complex business strategies. The Agenda
of the Board / Committee meetings is circulated at least a week prior to the date of the meeting. The
Agenda for the Board and Committee meetings includes detailed notes on the items to be discussed at
the meeting to enable the Directors to take an informed decision.

The Board met Twelve (12) times in financial year 2021-22 viz., on the following dates:

S. No. Date of Board meeting Directors present in the
Board Meeting
1. 14-05-2021 7
2. 03-06-2021 7
3. 26-06-2021 7
4. 27-07-2021 7
5. 14-08-2021 7
6. 05-09-2021 6
7. 28-10-2021 6
8. 12-11-2021 6
9. 01-12-2021 7
10. 10-02-2022 7
11. 01-03-2022 7
12. 24-03-2022 7
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The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days. The details of attendance
of each Director at Board Meetings are as follows:

S. No. Name of Director Board Meetings
No. of No. of No. of
meetings held | meetings | meetings
entitled | attended
to attend
1. ASHISH SOOD 12 12 12
2. AJAY KUMAR SOOD 12 12 12
3. ARUN KUMAR SOOD 12 12 12
4. RAKESH DHANDA 12 7 7
5. NEHA SOOD 12 12 12
6. ARAVIND PRASAD 12 4 4
7. SHREY BHUTANI 12 10 10

B. DIRECTORS

i.

ii.

APPOINTMENTS

INDEPENDENT/WOMEN DIRECTOR

e Mr. Rakesh Dhanda (DIN: 03496947) has been appointed as an Independent Director of
the Company to hold the office for a term of five years w.e.f. 05"September, 2021.

e Mr. Shrey Bhutani (DIN: 09189242) has been appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company to hold the office for a term of five years w.e.f. 26" June, 2021.

e Mr. Aravind Prasad (DIN: 08204757) has been appointed as an Additional Director (Non-
Executive & Independent) on the Board of the Company to hold office for a term of 5
consecutive years w.e.f. 01" December, 2021.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

The Company has received the necessary declarations from Independent Director in accordance
with Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulations 16(1)(b) and 25(8) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, that he meets the criteria of independence as laid out in Section 149(6) of the Act and
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, there has been
no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as independent directors of the
Company and the Board is satisfied of the integrity, expertise, and experience (including
proficiency in terms of Section 150(1) of the Act and applicable rules thereunder) of all
Independent Directors on the Board. Further, in terms of Section 150 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, Independent
Directors of the Company have included their names in the data bank of Independent Directors
maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood
(DIN. 00685585), Whole time Director, Sh. Arun Kumar Sood (DIN: 00685937), Managing
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Director and Sh. Ashish Kumar Sood (DIN: 00672179) Whole Time Director of the Company
retires by rotation and being eligible offers themselves for re-appointment.

iii. RESIGNATION

Mr. Jatinder Kumar Malik (DIN: 06821589) and Mr. Ramesh Kumar Sharma (DIN:
06753828) have resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f. 05.09.2021. Furthermore, Mr.
Kamalinder Kumar Singla (DIN: 02569152) has resigned from the Board of the Company
w.e.f.16.06.2021.

C. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the financial year under review, the company has complied with the provisions of section 203
of Companies Act, 2013. As per provisions of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Lalit
Kumar Jha has resigned from the post of CFO of the company on 17.06.2021 and Ms. Usha
Jayaprakash was appointed as CFO of the company on 24.06.2021.

D. FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR DIRECTORS

As a practice, all new Directors (including Independent Directors) inducted to the Board go through a
structured orientation programme. Presentations are made by Senior Management giving an overview
of the operations, to familiarize the new Directors with the Company’s business operations. The new
Directors are given an orientation on the products of the business, group structure and subsidiaries,
Board constitution and procedures, matters reserved for the Board, and the major risks and risk
management strategy of the Company. Visits to plant locations are organized for the new Directors to
enable them to understand the business better.

During the year under review, 3 (Three) new Independent Directors were inducted to the Board.
Details of orientation given to the existing and new Independent Directors in the areas of strategy/
industry trends, operations & governance, and safety, health and environment initiatives are available
on the website of the Company at website link https://www.kumarautocast.com/policies.html under
the title Investor Section — Policies and also annexed to this report as ANNEXURE VIII(i).

E. BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(4)of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of
its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit,
Nomination & Remuneration and Compliance Committees. The performance evaluations of all the
independent Directors have been done by the entire board excluding the director being evaluated. On
the basis of the performance evaluation done by the board it shall be determined whether to extend or
continue their term of appointment, whenever their respective term expires.

28. BOARD COMMITTEES
A. AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE.

The Audit and Risk Management committee of the Board of Directors was re-constituted during the
financial year 2021-22 in conformity of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. During the financial
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year 2021-22, after reconstitution, the committee comprises of three Independent directors i.e. Sh.
Shrey Bhutani, Sh. Rakesh Dhanda, Sh. Aravind Prasad and one executive director Sh. Ajay
Kumar Sood. Sh. Shrey Bhutani is the Chairperson of the said committee. The Committee met Six (6)
times during the year.

Due to cessation of Mr. Aravind Prasad and appointment of Ms. Ritu Mehra, the Audit and Risk
Management committee shall be reconstituted for the Financial Year 2022-23.

B.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the company was re-constituted during the financial
year 2021-22 in conformity of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. During the financial year 2021-
22, after reconstitution, the committee comprises of Three Non-Executive Independent directors i.e. Sh.
Shrey Bhutani,Sh. Rakesh Dhanda, Sh. Aravind Prasad and one Non-executive Non-independent
director Smt. Neha Sood., Sh. Shrey Bhutani is the Chairperson of said Committee. The Committee
met Four (4) times during the year under review.

Due to cessation of Mr. Aravind Prasad & Ms. Neha Sood and appointment of Ms. Ritu Mehra, the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall be reconstituted for the Financial Year 2022-23.

C.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors was re-constituted during the financial
year 2021-22 in conformity of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. During the financial year 2021-22,
after reconstitution, the committee comprises of three Independent directors i.e. Sh. Shrey Bhutani, Sh.
Rakesh Dhanda, Sh. Aravind Prasad and one executive director Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood. Sh. Shrey
Bhutani is the Chairperson of the said committee. The Committee met Four (4) times during the year.

Due to cessation of Mr. Aravind Prasad and appointment of Ms. Ritu Mehra, the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee shall be reconstituted for the Financial Year 2022-23.

29. POLICIES

A.

VIGIL MECHANISM AND WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to provisions of Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has established a
“Vigil Mechanism” incorporating Whistle Blower Policy in terms of the Listing Agreement for
employees and directors of the Company, for expressing the genuine concerns of unethical behavior,
frauds or violation of the codes of conduct by way of direct access to the Chairman/Chairman of the
Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The Company has also provided adequate safeguards against
victimization of employees and Directors who express their concerns.

The vigil Mechanism/ whistle blower policy forms part of this report as ANNEXURE VIII(ii) and also
available at the company’s website link https://www.kumarautocast.com/policies.html under the title
Investor Section — Policies.
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B. REMUNERATION POLICY

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company has formulated the Nomination &
Remuneration policy on Director’s appointment and remuneration includes the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters as provided under
Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination & Remuneration Policy is annexed
thereto and form part of this Report as ANNEXURE V.

The criterion of making payments to non-executive directors/ remuneration policy is annexed thereto
and form part of this Report as ANNEXURE VIII (iii) and is available at the company’s website link
https://www.kumarautocast.com/policies.htmlunder the title Investor Section — Policies.

C. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Audit & Risk Management Committee has formulated Risk Management Policy of the Company
which has been subsequently approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The aim of risk
management policy is to maximize opportunities in all activities and to minimize adversity. The policy
includes identifying types of risks and its assessment, risk handling and monitoring and reporting,
which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

The risk management policy forms part of this report as ANNEXURE VIII (iv) and also available at the
company’s website link https://www.kumarautocast.com/policies.html under the title Investor Section —
Policies.

D. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION POLICY

Related Party Transaction Policy, as formulated by the Company defines the materiality of related party
transactions and lays down the procedures of dealing with Related Party Transactions that may have
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Transactions entered with related parties as
defined under the Companies Act, 2013 during the Financial Year 2021-22 were mainly in the Ordinary
Course of business and on an arm's length basis. Prior approval of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee is obtained by the Company before entering into any Related Party Transaction as per the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

E. CODE OF CONDUCT

The company has its Code of Conduct which extends to all directors and senior employees of the
company which aims at maintaining highest standards of business conduct in line with the Ethics of the
Company, provides guidance in difficult situations involving conflict of interest & moral dilemma and
ensures compliance with all applicable laws. All senior employees have to read and understand this
code and agree to abide by it.

The code of conduct forms part of this report as ANNEXURE VIII(v) and also available at the
company’s website link https://www.kumarautocast.com/policies.html under the title Investor Section —
Policies.

F. DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The equity shares of Kumar Autocast Limited (“the Company”) are listed on Metropolitan Stock
Exchange of India. As per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
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2015, as amended, the Company is required to formulate a Dividend Distribution Policy which shall be
disclosed in its Annual Report and on its website. The dividend distribution shall be in accordance with
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Rules framed thereunder, SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other legislations governing
dividends and the Articles of Association of the Company, as in force and as amended from time to
time. The Board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”) has approved the Dividend Distribution
Policy of the Company (‘the Policy”) which endeavors to enhance stakeholder value for its investors
and at the same time tries to ensure the right balance between the quantum of dividend paid and the
amount retained for various business purposes. The Board will recommend dividend distribution based
on various internal and external factors, while striving for fairness, consistency and sustainability.

The dividend distribution policy forms part of this report as ANNEXURE VIII (vi) and also available at
the company’s website link https://www.kumarautocast.com/policies.html under the title Investor
Section — Policies.

G. MATERIALITY POLICY

The Policy is framed by the Board of Directors of Kumar Autocast Limited in line with the provisions
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing Regulations’):

- to provide an overall governance framework for determination of materiality of events /information;

- to ensure timely and adequate disclosures of material events / information fully, fairly, correctly and
transparently to the Stock Exchange(s), in pursuance with the Listing Regulations, to enable present and
potential investors to take informed decision/s with respect to their investment in the Company.

The Materiality policy forms part of this report as ANNEXURE VIII (vii) and also available at the
company’s website link https://www.kumarautocast.com/policies.html under the title Investor Section —
Policies.

30. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT

A. STATUTORY AUDITORS

According to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors), Rules, 2014 M/s Vinay &
Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana, are appointed as Statutory Auditors of the company
for a period of Five years from the conclusion of 37" Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of
42" AGM at a remuneration as approved by Chairman of the company.

B. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

M/s Kiranpreet & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice, was appointed as Secretarial Auditor
of the Company by the Board of Directors for the financial year 2021-22.

The Secretarial Auditors of the Company have submitted their Report in Form No. MR-3 as required
under Section 204, of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year ended 31*March, 2022. The
Report forms part of this report as ANNEXURE IV.
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31.

32,

33.

C. INTERNAL AUDITOR:

M/s J.S Bahl & Co, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company
pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 by the Board of Directors to
conduct internal audit of the functions and activities of the Company and maintain internal control
systems of the Company.

SHARES

A. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

B. SWEAT EQUITY

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

C. BONUS SHARES

The Company has not issued any Bonus Shares during the year under review.

D. EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme.

HUMAN RESOURCES /INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

The Company continues to lay emphasis on building and sustaining an excellent organization climate
based on human performance. Performance management is the key word for the company. During the year
the Company employed around 262 employees.

Pursuit of proactive policies for industrial relations has resulted in a peaceful and harmonious situation on
the shop floors of the various plants.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES:

The disclosures in respect of managerial remuneration as required under section 197(12) read with Rule
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed
hereto and form part of this report as ANNEXURE VI.

None of the employee of the Company receives salary of Rs. 60 Lacs per annum or Rs. 5§ Lacs per month
or more during the Financial Year 2021-22 as per Rule 5(2) and 5(3) Companies (Appointment &

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

In terms of section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company does not have any Holding or
Subsidiary Company.
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34. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE

Your company is listed on Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India (formerly known as MCX Stock
Exchange Ltd.) thereby having its Shares Listed on Recognized Stock Exchange with nationwide
terminals.

35. STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of section 164 of the
Companies Act 2013. The Directors have made the requisite disclosures, as required under the Companies
Act 2013.

A. OTHER DISCLOSURES

The other disclosures relating to details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures
imposed on the listed entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter
related to capital markets, during the last three years; If any, have been mentioned in Secretarial Audit
Report for the FY 2021-22, given as Annexure-VI below.

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors places on record its sincere appreciation for the dedicated services rendered by the
employees of the Company at all levels and the constructive co-operation extended by them. Your
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Government Authorities, Auditors, financial institutions, banks, suppliers, other business associates and
last but not the least the Shareholders.

By and on behalf of the Board
Kumar Autocast Limited
Dated: 07.09.2022
Place: Ludhiana

Sd/- Sd/-
Ajay Kumar Sood Arun Kumar Sood
(Wholetime Director) (Managing Director)
DIN: 00685585 DIN: 00685937
House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road, House No 2087,Urban Estates Phase-1
Urban Estate Ludhiana 141003 PB Dugri Model Town, Ludhiana 141002 PB
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ANNEXURE 1 - EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

(Referred to Paragraph 17 under "Annual Return" section of our Report of even date)

FORM NO. MGT 9

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2022

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN L27101PB1985PLC006100
Registration Date 09/01/1985

Name of the Company KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED
Category/Sub-category of the Company Company Limited By Shares

Non-govt company

Address of the Registered office & contact C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana, Punjab.

details
Telephone No: 0161-267142

Whether listed company Listed

Name, Address & contact details of the Skyline Financial Services (P) Ltd

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.
D — 153A, 1" Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase 1,

New Delhi — 110020

I1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. No. Name and Description of main products / NIC Code of the % to total
services Product/service turnover
of the
company

Casting 243-Casting of metals 100%




IT1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SN Name and address of CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicable
the Company Subsidiary shares Section
/ Associate held
NIL

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholder
S

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

year

[As on 31-March-2021]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

[As on 31-March-2022]

Demat

Physical

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

% of
Total
Shares

Physical Total

%
Change
during
the year

A.
Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

7513800

- | 7513800

72.43%

7513680

-| 7513680 | 72.43%

b) Central
Govt

c) State
Govt(s)

d) Bodies
Corp.

e) Banks / FI

f) Any other

Sub
A) (D)

Total

7513800

- | 7513800

72.43%

7513680

- | 7513680 | 72.43%

(2) Foreign

a) NRI




Individuals

b) Other
Individuals

¢) Bodies
Corp.

d) Any other

Sub Total
A) (2

TOTAL (A)

7513800

- | 7513800

72.43 %

7513680

- | 7513680

72.43%

B. Public Shareholding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year
[As on 31-March-2021]

No. of Shares held at the end of the

year

[As on 31-March-2022]

Demat | Physical

% of
Total
Shares

Total

Demat

Physic

Total
al

% of
Total
Shares

% Change
during the
year

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

o) Flls

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-




2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

1) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in uptoRs. 2lakh

585900

585900

5.65%

42115

543900

586015

5.65%

i) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
excess of Rs 2 lakh

2274300

2274300

21.92%

168000

2106300

2274300

21.92%

c) Others (specify)

Non Resident Indians

Overseas
Bodies

Corporate

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Resident Indian HUF

Trusts

Foreign Bodies - D R

Sub-total (B)(2):-

2860200

2860200

27.57%

210120

2650200

2860320

27.57%

Total Public (B)

2860200

2860200

27.57%

210120

2650200

2860320

27.57%




C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs

Category of | No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Shareholde the year [As on 31-March-2022] %
s [As on 31-March-2021] Change
% of % of during
. . the year
Demat | Physical Total Total Demat | Physical Total Total
Shares Shares
C. Shares - - - - - - - - -
held by
Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs
Total 7513800 2860200 10374000 100.00% 7723800 2650200 | 10374000 100.00 % -
(A+B+C)
(i1) Shareholding of Promoter
Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the
the year year
%
% of % of % of change
SN Shareholder’s Name % of total |  Shares total Shares during
No. of | Shares of | Pledged/ | No. of Shares Pledged / the
Shares the encumbere | Shares of the encumbere year
company | d to total compan d to total
shares pany shares
1 Arun Kumar Sood 3525900 33.99% 0.00 | 3525900 33.99% 0.00 -
2 Ajay Kumar Sood 1352400 13.04% 0.00 | 1352280 13.04% 0.00 -
3 Ashish Kumar Sood 1640100 15.81% 0.00 | 1640100 15.81% 0.00 -
4 Shama Sood 569100 5.49% 0.00 569100 5.49% 0.00 -
5 Alka Sood 2100 0.02% 0.00 2100 0.02% 0.00 -
6 Seema Sood 424200 4.09% 0.00 424200 4.09% 0.00 -




(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
. Reaso
Particulars Date n
No. of % of total % of total
No. of shares
shares shares shares
At the beginning of the 7513800 72.43% 7513680 72.43%
year
Changes during the
year
At the end of the year 7513800 72.43% 7513680 72.43%

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the Year during the Year
For each of the Top Date Reaso
10 shareholders n
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares shares shares
Raghubir Singh
Panchal
At the beginning of 424200 4.09% 424200 4.09%
the year
Changes during the
year
At the end of the year 424200 4.09% 424200 4.09%
Sh. Paramjit Singh
At the beginning of 210000 2.03% 210000 2.02%
the year
Changes during the
year
At the end of the year 210000 2.03% 210000 2.02%




Smt. Rajinder Kaur

At the beginning of
the year

172200

1.66%

172200

1.66%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

172200

1.66%

172200

1.66%

Sh. Preet Mohinder
Singh

At the beginning of
the year

168000

1.62%

168000

1.62%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

168000

1.62%

168000

1.62%

Sh. Vinod Sagar

At the beginning of
the year

147000

1.42%

147000

1.42%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

147000

1.42%

147000

1.42%

Smt. Renu Sharma

At the beginning of
the year

147000

1.42%

147000

1.42%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

147000

1.42%

147000

1.42%

Sh. Bikram Singh

At the beginning of

86100

0.83%

86100

0.83%




the year

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

86100

0.83%

86100

0.83%

Sh. Surinder Abrol

At the beginning of
the year

86100

0.83%

86100

0.83%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

86100

0.83%

86100

0.83%

Sh. Ramesh Kumar
Sharma

At the beginning of
the year

84000

0.81%

84000

0.81%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

84000

0.81%

84000

0.81%

10

Sh. Ashwani Khanna

At the beginning of
the year

84000

0.81%

84000

0.81%

Changes during the
year

At the end of the year

84000

0.81%

84000

0.81%




(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding at the Cumu.latlve .
.. Shareholding during
Shareholding of each Reaso beginning of the year the year
SN Directors and each Key Date I
Managerial Personnel No. of % of total No. of Zt;tgf
shares shares shares
shares
Arun Kumar Sood
At th inni f th
t the beginning of the 35,25,900 33.99% | 3525900 | 33.99%
year
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 35,25,900 33.99% | 35,25,900 33.99%
Ajay Kumar Sood
At th inni f th
t the beginning of the 13,52.400 13.04% | 1352280 | 13.04%
year
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 13,52,400 13.04% | 13,52,280 13.04%
Ashish Kumar Sood
At the beginni f th
© beginning ot the 16,40,100 1581% | 16,40,100 | 15.81%
year
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 16,40,100 15.81% | 16,40,100 15.81%
Pranav Khanna
At the beginni f th
© beginning ot the 42,000 0.40% 42,000 | 0.40%
year
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 42,000 0.40% 42,000 0.40%
Rakesh Dhanda
At the beginni f th
© BRGNS O e 109200 1.05% | 109200 |  1.05%
year
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 109200 1.05% 109200 1.05%

*Other directors and KMP’s do not have any shareholding in the company as on 31.03.2022




V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(Amt in Lakhs)
Secured Loans Total
Particulars excluding deposits Unsecured Deposits i el
Loans
(in Lacs) (in Lacs)
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 534.51 - 534.51
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
iil) Interest accrued but not i i
due
Total (i+ii-+iii) 534.51 - 534.51
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Addition
Loan Taken 5.95 - 5.95
Interest On Loan - - -
Reduction
Loan Repaid 86.37 - 86.37
Net Change (80.42) - (80.42)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 454.09 - 454.09
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not i i
due
Total (i-+ii-+iii) 454.09 - 454.09




VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

Sl

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager ) (in

lacs)

Total
Amount (in
lacs)

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

Arun Kumar

42

Ajay Kumar

42

Ashish Kumar

42

126

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- Others, specify...

Others, please specify (Medical
Reimbursement)

0.82

3.24

0.51

4.57

Total (A)

42.82

45.24

42.51

130.57

* Remuneration of Managing Director and Whole Time Director has been approved by share holders in
Annual General Meeting by Special Resolution.




B. Remuneration to other directors:

SI. No. | Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total
Amount

Independent Directors

- Fee for attending board committee
meetings

- Commission

- Others, please specify

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

- Fee for attending board committee
meetings

- Commission

- Others, please specify

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD /Manager /WTD

(Amt. in INR Lacs)

SI. no.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

Company
Secretary

CFO

Total

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section

17(3) Income-tax

Act, 1961

N/A

2.35

541

7.76

Stock Option

N/A

N/A

N/A

98]

Sweat Equity

N/A

N/A

N/A

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

N/A

N/A

N/A

Others, please specify

Total

2.35

541

7.76




PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the | Brief Details of Penalty/ | Authority[RD Appeal made. If
companies description Punishment/ /NCLT/Court] any(give details)
Act Compounding fees
imposed
A. Company
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
B. Directors
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
C. Other Officers In Default
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
By and on behalf of the Board
Kumar Autocast Limited
Dated: 07.09.2022
Place: Ludhiana
Sd/- Sd/-
Ajay Kumar Sood Arun Kumar Sood
(Wholetime Director) (Managing Director)

House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road,
Urban Estate Ludhiana 141003 PB

DIN: 00685585

DIN: 00685937
House No 2087,Urban Estates Phase-1
Dugri Model Town, Ludhiana 141002 PB




1.

ANNEXURE’IT

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.
SL. Particulars Details
No.
1. | Name (s) of the related party 1. NIL
Nature of Relationship None
2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction None
3. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transaction NIL
4. Amount (In Lakhs) N.A.
5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any N.A.
6. Date of approval by the Board
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
SL. Particulars Details
No.
1. Name (s) of the related party 1. Kumar Exports (UNIT-1)
Nature of Relationship Associate Firm
2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Purchases/Labour Job
Sales
Amount Receivable
3. Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ | Ongoing
transaction
4. Amount (In Rs.) Rs. 369.50 Lakhs
Rs. 2299.86 Lakhs
Rs. 1067.98 Lakhs
5. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | i) Purchase of Casting and Forging
transaction including the value, if any Materials
i) Labour Job of metal forging parts.
1i1) Sales of Casting and Forging
Materials
6. Date of approval by the Board 05.09.2021




Nature of Transactions during the year Details
Amount in Lakh (Rs.)

REMUNERATION
Ashish Kumar Sood 42.00
Ajay Kumar Sood 42.00
Arun Kumar Sood 42.00

?':; Pranav Khanna 2.35

s Usha Jayaprakash 5.41

o

& MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT

.7:‘ Ashish Kumar Sood 0.51

) Ajay Kumar Sood 3.24

% Arun Kumar Sood 0.82

§a AMOUNT PAYABLE

2 Ashish Kumar Sood 6.51
Ajay Kumar Sood 6.43
Arun Kumar Sood 6.09
Pranav Khanna 0.37
Usha Jayaprakash 0.66
Date of approval by the Board 05.09.2021

Dated: 07.09.2022
Place: Ludhiana

Sd/-

Ajay Kumar Sood

(Wholetime Director)

DIN: 00685585

House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road,
Urban Estate Ludhiana 141003 PB

By and on behalf of the Board
Kumar Autocast Limited

Sd/-

Arun Kumar Sood

(Managing Director)

DIN: 00685937

House No 2087,Urban Estates Phase-1
Dugri Model Town, Ludhiana 141002 PB




ANNEXURE °III’

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

[Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014]

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;

Kumar Autocast Limited continued to emphasize on the conservation and optimal utilization of energy in
manufacturing unit of the Company. The energy conservation measures Implemented during FY 2021-22
are listed below:

e Maintenance of the machines as per schedule.

e Lights in the Factory area are switched off whenever not required.

e Energy audit is conducted and recommendations are implemented.
2. Additional Investments & Proposals, if any, being implemented for Reduction of Consumption

of Energy:
The company continued its efforts towards effective utilization of energy for reduction in power
consumption. The Company is constantly exploring the use of alternate sources of energy that are
commensurate with the scale of present operations and the type of products being manufactured.

3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments;
During the year under review, there was no capital investment on Energy Conservation Equipments.

Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy:

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
POWER CONSUMPTION

Units Purchased (KWH) 76,55,603 75,89,080
Amount (Rs.) 5,32,83,000.00 5,28,20,000.00
Average Rate Per Unit (Rs.) 6.96 6.96

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(1) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:

e Imparting training to personnel in various manufacturing techniques by experts.

(2) Benefits derived like Product Improvement, Cost Reduction, Product Development or

Import Substitution as a result of above efforts:




e Increase productivity.

e Power saving.

e Manpower cost reduced.

e Raw materials cost reduction.

e Production wastage reduced.

(3) Information regarding technology imported during the last 3 years

e The Details of Technology Imported
e The Year of Import

e  Whether Technology Has been Fully Absorbed
e If Not Fully Absorbed, Areas Where Absorption

has not taken place and the reasons thereof.

(4)Expenditure on Research and Development

- NIL

- Not Applicable
- Not Applicable
- Not Applicable

During the year under review the company did not incurred any expenses on Research and Development.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the year under review the company has earn the foreign exchange, the details of the same is

described in the financial statements.

Dated: 07.09.2022
Place: Ludhiana

Sd/-
Ajay Kumar Sood
(Wholetime Director)
DIN: 00685585
House No 2086, Phase-1, Dugri Road,
Urban Estate Ludhiana 141003 PB

By and on behalf of the Board
Kumar Autocast Limited

Sd/-

Arun Kumar Sood

(Managing Director)

DIN: 00685937

House No 2087,Urban Estates Phase-1

Dugri Model Town, Ludhiana 141002 PB




ANNEXURE ‘IV’
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Kumar Autocast Limited
C-179, Focal Point

Phase VI, Ludhiana,
Punjab (India).

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices made by Kumar Autocast Limited (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our virtual verification of the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2022
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute book, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) :-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;




(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; — Not applicable during the audit period

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; — Not applicable during the audit period.

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;— Not applicable during the audit period.

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; —
Not applicable during the audit period.

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; — Not
applicable during the audit period. And

(1)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015; —

(vi) Other Applicable laws.

We have relied on the representation made by the Company & its Officers for system and
mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts as Environmental
Laws & Labour Laws.

We have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the following:-

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s).

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.




Based on the above examination, We hereby report that, during the Review Period:

We hereby report that, during the Review Period:

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/

guidelines issued thereunder, except with regard to Regulation 30-intimation for Change of one of

the Director of the company was not given to Exchange and in respect of matters specified

below:-
Sr. Compliance Requirement Deviations Observations/ Remarks of the
No. (Regulations/ circulars/ Practicing Company Secretary
guidelines including specific
clause)

1. | Regulation 19 of SEBI | Non-compliance | The Company has taken adequate
(Listing  Obligations  and | with Regulation steps and actions to comply with
Disclosure Requirements) | 19 of SEBI the required Regulations,

(LODR)

Regulations, 2015

Regulations, 2015

provisions and guidelines.

(a) The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/

material subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard

Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/

Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder:

Regulations™) and Standard
Operating Procedure for
suspension, the Exchange
has observed Non-

compliance with Regulation

Sr. | Action Details of Details of action taken E.g. | Observations/ Remarks of the
No. | taken by violation fines, warning letter, Practicing Company
debarment, etc. Secretary, if any.
1. | Securities Non- With reference to “SEBI | The fine charges as imposed
and compliance SOP  Circular” issued by by the Exchange were waived
) SEBI with respect to penal
Exchange with . . off by the Exchange on the
actions prescribed for non-
Board of | Regulation 19 | compliance of  certain | basis of clarification given by
India of SEBI | provisions of the SEBI| the company. Moreover, the
(Listing Obligations and .
(LODR) Disclosure Requirements) Company has filed revised
Regulations, Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Corporate Governance report
2015 with the Exchange.




19 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015. As a
result, fine charges of Rs.
1,84,000/- (Including GST
@ 18 %) were imposed by
the Exchange on the Listed

entity.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Adequate notice is given to all directors/members/shareholders to schedule the General Meetings,
Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least Twenty One days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 29.07.2022
Sd/-
Kiranpreet Kaur
Kiranpreet & Associates
ACS No. 44647
CP No. 16428

UDIN: A044647D000706605

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms
an integral part of this report.




s LIST OF LABOUR LAWS AND ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS WHICH HAVE BEEN
VERIFIED DURING AUDIT PERIOD

«» List of Labour Laws

Factories Act, 1948

Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936
The Minimum Wages Act, 1948
Employee’s State Insurance Act, 1948
The Payment of Bonus Act, 1972

The Apprentices Act, 1961

V V V V V VYV V V

Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

R/

«+ List of Environmental Laws

» Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
» Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
» Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981




Annexure: -A

The Members,

Kumar Autocast Limited
C-179, Phase VI, Focal Point
LUDHIANA

Punjab (India).

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the random test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc and we have relied on such representation for giving our report.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random test
basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 29.07.2022
Sd/-

Kiranpreet Kaur
Kiranpreet & Associates
ACS No. 44647

CP No. 16428

UDIN: A044647D000706605




ANNEXURE ‘V’

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

PREFACE:

Pursuant to the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 6 of the Companies
(Meeting of the Board and its powers) Rules, 2014, the Nomination and Remuneration committee
of the Board of the Company has formulated a policy to decide the criteria for the appointment
and for the remuneration to the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. The
Policy also aims to attract, motivate and retain manpower in a competitive and global markets
scenario which is formulated by the Committee and approved by the Board of Directors in their
meeting held on 24.12.2014.

Produced here below is the ‘“Nomination &Remuneration Policy” of the Company in

compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the object as mentioned herein.

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE:

To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to Board their
appointment and removal.

To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director.

To recommend to the Board remuneration policy related to remuneration of Directors (Whole
Time Directors, Executive Directors etc), Key Managerial Personnel and other employees while
ensuring the following:-

e That the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the company successfully.

e That relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks.

e That remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance
objectives appropriate of the working of the company and its goals.

-To formulate criteria for evaluation of Directors and the Board.

-To devise a policy on Board diversity.




3. MEMBERSHIP:

a). The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them being
Independent.

b) Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting.

¢) Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

d) Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.

4. CHAIRMAN:

a) Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director.

b) Chairman of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a
Chairman of the Committee.

c¢) In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall
choose one amongst them to act as Chairman.

d) Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the
Annual General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’

queries.

S. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS:

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

6. COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTERESTS:

a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is
discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated.

b) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the

meetings of the Committee.

7. SECRETARY:
The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee.
8. VOTING:

a) Decisions of the Committee shall be decided by a majority of votes of Members present and
voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee.

b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.




9.

10.

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING:

The minutes of all the proceedings of all meetings must be signed by the Chairman of the
Committee at the subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at the

subsequent Board meetings.

EFFECTIVE DATE & AMENDMENTS:

This policy will be effective from 24.12.2014 and may be amended subject to the approval of

Board of Directors.

By and on behalf of the Board
Kumar Autocast Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Ajay Kumar Sood Arun Kumar Sood
(Wholetime Director) (Managing Director)

DIN: 00685585
2086, Phase-1, Urban Estate,
Ludhiana, 141003

DIN: 00685937
2087, Phase-1, Urban Estate,
Dugri, Ludhiana, 141003




ANNEXURE ‘VI’

Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014.

1. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary during the Financial Year 2021-22, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22 and the comparison of
remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the Company are as
under:

Sr. Name of Remuneration of | % Increase | Ratio of Comparison of the
Director/ Director / KMP in Remuneration of Remuneration of the
No. KMP and for the Financial | Remunerati | each Director / to KMP against the
Designation Year 2021-22 on in the | median performance of the
(Rs. In Lacs) Financial remuneration of Company
Year 2021- | employees
22
1. | Arun  Kumar During 2021-22, the
sood, 42.00 (8.44%) 50.96:1 Company incurred
Executive loss before
Director depreciation, interest

and tax of Rs. 14.88

2. | Ashish Sood,
Executive 42.00 (8.44%)
Director

Lacs as  against
50.96:1 PBDIT of Rs. 256.32
Lacs in the previous

3. | Ajay Kumar year. During 2021-22

Sood, the loss after tax was
Executive 42.00 8 447 50.96:1 Rs. -110.19 Lacs as
Director ) (8.44%) against profit of Rs.

114.61 Lacs last
year.

4. | Kamalinder
Kumar Singla,
Non-
Executive
Independent
Director
(Ceased w.e.f.
16.06.2021)

5. | Ramesh
Kumar _ _ _ -
Sharma, Non-

Executive




Independent
Director
(Ceased w.e.f.
05.09.2021)

Jatinder
Kumar Malik,
Non-
Executive
Independent
Director
(Ceased w.e.f.
05.09.2021)

Shrey

Bhutani, Non-
Executive
Independent
Director
(Appointed
w.e.f.
26.06.2021)

Rakesh
Dhanda, Non-
Executive
Independent
Director
(Appointed
w.e.f.
05.09.2021)

Aravind
Prasad, Non-
Executive
Independent
Director
(Appointed
w.e.f.
01.12.2021)

10.

Usha
Jayaprakash

(CFO)

541

1.88:1

11.

Pranav
Khanna

Company

2.35

10.85

1.41:1

During 2021-22, the
Company  incurred
loss before
depreciation, interest
and tax of Rs. 14.88
Lacs as  against
PBDIT of Rs. 256.32
Lacs in the previous




Secretary year. During 2021-22
the loss after tax was
Rs. -110.19 Lacs as
against profit of Rs.
114.61 Lacs last
year.

* Details not given as Mr. Kamalinder Kumar Singla, Mr. Ramesh Kumar Sharma and Mr. Jatinder
Kumar Malik, Mr. Rakesh Dhanda, Mr. Shrey Bhutani & Mr. Aravind Prasad were appointed as

Independent Directors and no such sitting fee is paid to attend the meetings.




ANNEXURE ‘VIP

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022
[Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V, Part E of the SEBI Listing Regulations]

To,

The Members,

Kumar Autocast Limited
C-179, Focal Point

Phase VI,Ludhiana,
Punjab (India).

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Kumar Autocast
Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended on March 31, 2022, as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27,
clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D & E of Schedule V of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(‘SEBI Listing Regulations’).

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the
Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the
representations made by the Directors and the management and considering the relaxations granted by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of
the COVID-19 pandemic, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the year ended on March 31, 2022.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 30.07.2022
Sd/-
Signature
Kiranpreet Kaur
Kiranpreet & Associates
ACS No. 44647
CP No. 16428

UDIN: A044647D000715636




Annexure VIII
Policies

Annexure VIII(i)

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Preamble

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations)
stipulates that the Company shall familiarize the Independent Directors through various
programmes about the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates,
business model of the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities as Independent Directors of
the Company, etc., through various programmes. As per Listing Regulation the details of the
Familiarization programme for Independent Directors shall be disseminated on the website of
the Company.

1. Initial Familiarization Module

At the time of appointing a Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to him, which inter
alia explains the role, function, duties and responsibilities expected of him as a Director of the
Company. The Company conducts an introductory familiarization program / presentation,
when a new Independent Director comes on the Board of the Company. At the outset, all the
independent directors are provided an overview of;

a) Criteria of independence applicable to Independent Directors as per Listing Regulations and
the Companies Act, 2013;

b) Time allocation by the Independent Directors on financial controls, overseeing systems of risk
management, financial management compliance, Corporate Social Responsibility, Stakeholders
conflicts, Board effectiveness, strategic direction, Meetings and performance assessment;

c) Roles, functions, Duties, Responsibilities and liabilities of Independent Directors;

d) Directors Responsibility Statement forming part of Boards” Report;

e) Vigil Mechanism including policy formulation, disclosures, code for Independent Directors;
f) Risk Management Systems & framework;

g) Board Evaluation Process and Procedures;

The Director is also explained in detail the compliances required from him under the
Companies Act, Listing Regulations and other relevant regulations and his affirmation taken
with respect to the same. With a view to familiarize him with the Company’s operations, the




Chairman/Managing Director provides a one-to-one interaction on the organisational set up,
the functioning of various divisions / departments, the Company’s market share and the
markets in which it operates, governance and internal control processes and other relevant
information pertaining to the Company’s business. The above initiatives help the Director to
understand the Company, its business and the regulatory framework in which the Company
operates and equips him to effectively fulfill his role as a Director of the Company.

2. Continual Familiarization Modules

The Company follows a structured orientation programme for the Independent Directors to
understand and get updated on the business and operations of the Company on a continuous
basis. The familiarization module inter-alia, includes regular inputs on strategy and business
model of the Company, budgeting and planning, performance of various business verticals,
statutory reporting including Internal Audit Reports, SEBI Audit Reports and compliance
related certifications and overview of business of subsidiaries on an on-going basis through the
Chairman/ Managing Director/Chief Financial Officer and the Senior Managerial Personnel.
The Company also provides an opportunity to the Independent Directors to interact with the
senior team leader of the Company and help them to understand the Company’s strategy,
business model, operations, service and product offerings, markets, organization structure,
facilities and risk management and such other areas. Presentations are made to the Board of
Directors / Audit Committee (AC) (minutes of AC and other Board Committees are circulated
to the Board), where Directors get an opportunity to interact with Executive Committee
members and Business Heads. The Board of Directors has complete access to the information
within the Company. Independent Directors have the freedom to interact with the Company’s

management.

Apart from this, they also have independent interactions with the Statutory Auditors, the
Internal Auditors and external advisors appointed from time to time. Further, they meet
regularly without the presence of any management personnel and their meetings are conducted
informally to enable the Independent Directors to discuss matters pertaining to the Company’s
affairs and put forth their combined views to the Board of Directors of the Company.

3. REVIEW

This Familiarization Process shall be reviewed and revised by the Board as and when required.

Disclosure of the Policy:

Pursuant to Regulation 46(2) of Listing Regulations, the Familiarization Programme shall be
disclosed on the Company’s website and a web link thereto shall be provided in the Annual
Report.




Annexure VIII(ii)

VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

Preamble

The Companies Act 2013 under the provisions of Section 177 has mandated that “every listed
Company or such class or classes of companies, as may be prescribed, shall establish a vigil mechanism
for directors and employees to report genuine concerns in such manner as may be prescribed”. Further
such vigil mechanism under “shall provide for adequate safeguards against victimisation of persons
who use such mechanism and make provision for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit
Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases”.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 (9) & (10) read with rule 7 of Chapter XII of
the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has set up and adopted the following Vigil
Mechanism which lays down the principles and standards governing the
management of grievances and concerns of employees and directors of the Company
and shall be overseen by the Audit Committee (hereinafter referred to as
‘Committee’) of the Company. The Mechanism as set up herein-below shall enable
the employees and the directors of the Company to report their genuine concerns or
grievances about the actual and potential violation of the principles and standards
laid down herein.

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and
legal conduct of business operations and in order to maintain these standards the
Company encourages the employees to voice their genuine concerns without fear of
censure.

Mechanism

1. Objectives:-
To encourage employees to bring genuine ethical and legal concerns, violations and
suspected fraudulent behaviour of which they are or become aware of, to an internal
authority so that action can be taken immediately to resolve the problem.

To minimize the Company's exposure to the damage that can occur when the
employees actually or potentially try to circumvent internal mechanisms in
furthering the aforementioned concerns, violation and frauds.

To let employees know that the Organization is serious about adherence to Code of
conduct or policy.

2. Scope

This Policy covers malpractices and events which have taken place / suspected to
have taken place, misuse or abuse of authority, fraud or suspected fraud, violation of




Company’s rules, manipulations, negligence causing danger to public health and
safety, misappropriation of monies and other matters or activities on account of
which the interest of the Company is affected.

However the mechanism does not release the employees from their duty of
confidentiality in the course of their work and nor can it be used as a route for raising
malicious or unfounded allegations about a personal situation.

3. Eligibility

All Employees and Directors of the Company are eligible to make disclosures under
the mechanism in relation to matters concerning the Company.

4. Procedure:-

1. Where any director or employee finds or observes any of following activities (but not
limited to) then he must within a period of 30days of occurrence of event or on the date on
which he comes to know, report in writing their complaint / grievance in the format as
provided in Annexure 1 to this mechanism:

Embezzlement of funds.

Any prejudicial act in which stakeholders interest or public interest is involved.
Serious frauds which are affecting or may affect the financial position of the
Company.

Internal theft.

Payoff &Kickbacks etc.

2. The Complainant shall address the Complaints / Grievances to the Vigilance Officer (as
may be designated by the Audit Committee) of the Company or the Chairman of the
Audit Committee (in exceptional cases). The duly filled complaint form provided herein
shall be submitted to any of the above mentioned person(s):

3. In order to protect the identity of the complainant, the Vigilance Officer or the Committee
will maintain confidentiality of the complainants.

4. The Committee on the receipt of disclosure of any of above frauds or events shall make a
record of the disclosure and also ascertain from the complainant whether he was the
person who made the disclosure or not. The Committee shall also carry out initial
investigation either itself or at its discretion by involving any other official of the
Company or an outside agency as it may deem fit.

5. The decision to undertake the investigation by the Committee shall not by itself be
regarded as the acceptance of the accusation by the Committee. It is a neutral fact finding
process to ascertain the truth of the accusation.

6. Any member of the Audit Committee or such other officer involved in the investigation,
having any conflict of interest with the matter shall disclose his/her concern/interest
forthwith and shall not deal with the matter.

7. The Committee as it deems fit, may call for further information from the complainant.




8. The Committee shall carry out detailed investigation if the reported disclosure is found to
be correct.

9. The Employee/Director against whom disclosure has been reported shall:- Co-operate
with Committee or any person appointed in this regard.
Have a right to consult any person of his choice other than members of Committee
and / or Complainant.

Not interfere in investigations conducted by Committee.

Not withhold, tamper or destroy any of evidences.

Unless otherwise restricted, be given an opportunity to respond to material
findings.

Not threaten, influence or intimidate complainant or any of witnesses. Have a

right to know the outcomes of investigation.

10. The Investigations shall be completed within a period of 60days.

5. Decisions and Reporting

If the outcome of the investigation leads to a conclusion that, any improper or
unethical act has been committed, then the Committee must record the same and
recommend the Complaint along with the findings of the Committee upon
investigation to the management for the disciplinary or corrective action to be taken
against the concerned employee/director. The decision of the Committee shall be
recorded with reasons and a copy of the same shall be forwarded to the complainant
and the subject.

If the decision is not to the satisfaction of the complainant then the complainant has
the right to report the event to the appropriate legal or investigating authority.
However, if the complainant makes false or wrong allegations then disciplinary
actions in accordance with the rules, procedures and policies of the Company shall be
taken against the complainant as the Committee may decide.

6. Penalties

If the alleged fraud or misconduct is proven after investigation, the Committee may
impose such penalty / fine as it may deem fit depending upon nature of fraud or
unethical act done by the person.

7. Secrecy and Confidentiality

The Committee as well as complainant shall:-

Maintain confidentiality of all matters under this policy.

Discuss only to the extent or with those persons as required under this policy for
completing the process of investigation.

Not keep the papers unattended anywhere at any time.




Keep the electronic mails / files under password and under safe custody.

. Protection

No unfair treatment will be meted out to a complainant by virtue of his/ her having
reported a Protected Disclosure under this policy. The Company, as a policy,
condemns any kind of discrimination, harassment, victimization or any other unfair
employment practice being adopted against complainants. Complete protection will
therefore be given to complainant against any unfair practice like retaliation, threat or
intimidation of termination / suspension of service, disciplinary action, transfer,
demotion, refusal of promotion or the like including any direct or indirect use of
authority to obstruct the complainant’s right to continue to perform his duties
/functions including making further disclosure.

The Company will take steps to minimize difficulties which the complainant may
experience as a result of making the disclosure. Thus, if the complainant is required
to give evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings, the Company will arrange
for the complainant to receive advice about the procedure, etc.

A complainant may report any violation of the above clause to the Chairman of the
Committee, who shall investigate into the same and recommend suitable action to the
management. The identity of the complainant shall be kept confidential to the extent
possible and permitted under law. The identity of the complainant will not be
revealed unless he himself has made either his details public or disclosed his identity
to any other office or authority.

In the event of the identity of the complainant being disclosed, the Committee is
authorized to initiate appropriate action as per extent regulations against the person
or agency making such disclosure. The identity of the complainant, if known, shall
remain confidential to those persons directly involved in applying this mechanism,
unless the issue requires investigation by law enforcement agencies.

Any other employee assisting in the said investigation shall also be protected to the
same extent as the Complainant. Provided however that the complainant before
making a complaint has reasonable belief that an issue exists and that he has acted in
good faith. This policy does not protect an employee from an adverse action taken
independent of his disclosure of unethical and improper practice etc. unrelated to a
disclosure made pursuant to this policy.

Direct Access to Chairman

The complainant shall have direct access to Chairman of Committee in exceptional
cases. The Chairman shall prescribe suitable direction in this regard.




10.Display of Mechanism on Website

The Mechanism herein set up cannot be effective unless it has been communicated to
eligible person described herein above. For this purpose Company shall display it on
its website and shall also disclose it in Board’s Report.

11.Retention of Documents

The evidences, documents received by the committee in due course of time during
investigation shall be preserved for three (3) years or for such period as may be
specified by law in force in this regard from time to time.

12. Amendments

The Company reserves right to amend, modify, and cancel any of the provisions of
the mechanism in whole or in part set up herein above or may restrict subject to such
conditions as it may deem fit.
Date of Approval By Board of Director’s: 18.06.2014

Annexure 1

Date:

Name of Complainant (Employee/Director)

Email-id

Address:

Contact No.

Subject matter which is being reported

Name of Person/Event focused at:

Brief about concern

Evidence (if Any)

Signature




Annexure VIII(iii)

1. Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors

With changes in the corporate governance norms brought by the Companies Act, 2013
as well as the SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement) Regulation 2015, the
role of Non-Executive Directors (NED) and the degree and quality of their engagement
with the Board and the Company has undergone significant changes over a period of
time. The Company is being hugely benefited from the expertise, advice and inputs
provided by the NEDs. They devote their valuable time in deliberating on the strategic
and critical issues in the course of the Board and Committee meetings of the Company
and give their valuable advice, suggestion and guidance to the management of the
Company from time to time. Levels of remuneration to the NEDs are determined such
that they attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality and ability required to run
the Company successfully.

Under the SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement) Regulation 2015, requires
every company to publish its criteria of making payments to NEDs in its annual report.
Alternatively, this may be put up on the company’s website and reference may be
drawn thereto in its annual report. Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 17(6)(a) of SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement) Regulation
2015 require the prior approval of the shareholders of a company for making payment
to its NEDs.

In keeping with the above, any fee/remuneration payable to the NEDs of the Company
shall abide by the following:

Sitting Fee:

Such director(s) may receive remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the
Board or Committee thereof or any other meeting as required by Companies Act, 2013,
SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirement) Regulation 2015 or other applicable
law or for any other purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board;

Commission:

Under the Companies Act, 2013, Section 197 allows a company to pay remuneration to
its NEDs either by way of a monthly payment or at a specified percentage of the net
profits of the company or partly by one way and partly by the other. Further, the section
also states that where the company has managing director or whole-time director or
manager, then a maximum of 1% of its net profits can be paid as remuneration to its
NEDs. In case there is no managing director or whole-time director or manager, then a




maximum of 3% of net profit can be paid. Thus, the basis of payment to the NEDs is the
net profit of the Company.

Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission
will be recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board. However the Company
is however not obligated to remunerate its NEDs.

Refund of excess remuneration paid:

If any such director draws or receives, directly or indirectly, by way of
fee/remuneration any such sums in excess of the limit as prescribed or without the
prior sanction, where it is required, such remuneration shall be refunded to the
Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The
Company shall not waive the recovery of any sum refundable to it.

Reimbursement of actual expenses incurred:

NEDs may also be paid/reimbursed such sums either as fixed allowance and /or actual
as fair compensation for travel, boarding and lodging and incidental and /or actual out
of pocket expenses incurred by such member for attending Board/ Committee Meetings.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is entrusted with the role of reviewing
the compensation of NEDs.

Payment to independent directors:

An independent director shall not be entitled to any stock option and shall receive
Sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or Committee thereof or any other
meeting as required by Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure
Requirement) Regulation 2015 or other applicable law as amended from time to time.
Further they may also be paid / reimbursed such sums incurred as actuals for travel,
incidental and / or actual out of pocket expenses incurred by such Director / Member
for attending Board / Committee Meetings.

The above criteria and policy are subject to review by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company.

Amendments

The Company reserves the right to modify and/or amend this document at any time
subject to the applicable provisions the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.




Annexure VIII(iv)

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

BACKGROUND

KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED (the Company) is engaged in the manufacture and marketing of
agricultural implements, automotive components, tool makers, brass founders, metal workers,
boiler makers, millwrights, iron and steel converters, smiths, coke manufacturers, electrical
engineers, water supply engineers, smelters, iron plates makers and framers and manufacturing
of heavy and light forgings, casting of ferrous and non ferrous metals. The business activities of
the Company carry various internal and external risks.

‘Risk’ in literal terms can be defined as the effect of uncertainty on the objectives. Risk is
measured in terms of consequences and likelihood. Risks can be internal and external and are
inherent in all administrative and business activities. Every member of any organisation
continuously manages various types of risks. Formal and systematic approaches to managing
risks have evolved and they are now regarded as good management practice also called as Risk
Management.

‘Risk Management’ is the identification, assessment, and prioritization of risks followed by
coordinated and economical application of resources to minimize, monitor, and control the
probability and/or impact of uncertain events or to maximize the realisation of opportunities.
Risk management also provides a system for the setting of priorities when there are
competing demands on limited resources.

Effective risk management requires:

O A strategic focus,

o Forward thinking and active approaches to management

O Balance between the cost of managing risk and the anticipated benefits, and
o Contingency planning in the event that critical threats are realised.

In today’s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks
in accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are imperative. The common risks inter
alia are: Regulations, competition, Business risk, Technology obsolescence, return on
investments, business cycle, increase in price and costs, limited resources, retention of talent,
etc.

1. LEGAL FRAMEWORK

Risk Management is a key aspect of Corporate Governance Principles and Code of Conduct
which aims to improvise the governance practices across the business activities of any
organization. The new Companies Act, 2013 and the Equity Listing Agreement have also
incorporated various provisions in relation to Risk Management policy, procedure and
practices.




The provisions of Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013 necessitate that the Board’s
Report should contain a statement indicating development and implementation of a risk
management policy for the Company including identification therein of elements of risk, if any,
which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

Further, the provisions of Section 177(4)(vii) of the Companies Act, 2013 require that every
Audit Committee shall act in accordance with the terms of reference specified in writing by
the Board which shall inter alia include evaluation of risk management systems.

In line with the above requirements, it is therefore, required for the Company to frame and
adopt a “Risk Management Policy” (this Policy) of the Company

2. PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF THE POLICY

The main objective of this Policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and
to promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with
the Company’s business. In order to achieve the key objective, this Policy establishes a
structured and disciplined approach to Risk Management, in order to guide decisions on risk
related issues.

The specific objectives of this Policy are:

O To ensure that all the current and future material risk exposures of the Company are
identified, assessed, quantified, appropriately mitigated, minimized and managed i.e. to
ensure adequate systems for risk management.

O To establish a framework for the company’s risk management process and to ensure its
implementation.

O To enable compliance with appropriate regulations, wherever applicable, through the
adoption of best practices.

O To assure business growth with financial stability.

3. APPLICABILITY

This Policy applies to all areas of the Company’s operations.

4. KEY DEFINITIONS

O Risk Assessment —
The systematic process of identifying and analyzing risks. Risk Assessment consists of a
detailed study of threats and vulnerability and resultant exposure to various risks

o Risk Management —
The systematic way of protecting business resources and income against losses so that the
objectives of the Company can be achieved without unnecessary interruption.

o Risk Management Process -
The systematic application of management policies, procedures and practices to the tasks
of establishing the context, identifying, analyzing, evaluating, treating, monitoring and

communicating risk.
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5.

RISK FACTORS

The objectives of the Company are subject to both external and internal risks that are
enumerated below:-

o External Risk Factors

Economic Environment and Market conditions

Competition

Revenue Concentration and liquidity aspects-
Each business area of products such as pumps, turbines, motors, generators,
switchgears and turnkey projects has specific aspects on profitability and liquidity.
The risks are therefore associated on each business segment contributing to total
revenue, profitability and liquidity. Since the projects have inherent longer time-frame
and milestone payment requirements, they carry higher risks for profitability and
liquidity.

Inflation and Cost structure-
Inflation is inherent in any business and thereby there is a tendency of costs going
higher. Further, the project business, due to its inherent longer time-frame, as much
higher risks for inflation and resultant increase in costs.

Technology Obsolescence —
The Company strongly believes that technological obsolescence is a practical reality.
Technological obsolescence is evaluated on a continual basis and the necessary
investments are made to bring in the best of the prevailing technology.

Legal —
Legal risk is the risk in which the Company is exposed to legal action. As the
Company is governed by various laws and the Company has to do its business within
four walls of law, the Company is exposed to legal risk.

Fluctuations in Foreign Exchange-

The Company has limited currency exposure in case of sales, purchases and other
expenses. It has natural hedge to some extent. However, beyond the natural hedge, the
risk can be measured through the net open position i.e. the difference between un-
hedged outstanding receipt and payments. The risk can be controlled by a mechanism
of “Stop Loss” which means the Company goes for hedging (forward booking) on
open position when actual exchange rate reaches a particular level as compared to
transacted rate.

Internal Risk Factors
Project Execution
Contractual Compliance
Operational Efficiency



Hurdles in optimum use of resources
Quality Assurance

Environmental Management

Human Resource Management
Culture and values

6. RESPONSIBILITY FOR RISK MANAGEMENT

Generally every staff member of the Organization is responsible for the effective
management of risk including the identification of potential risks. Management is responsible
for the development of risk mitigation plans and the implementation of risk reduction
strategies. Risk management processes should be integrated with other planning processes
and management activities.

7. COMPLIANCE AND CONTROL

All the Senior Executives under the guidance of the Chairman and Board of Directors has the
responsibility for over viewing management’s processes and results in identifying, assessing
and monitoring risk associated with Organization’s business operations and  the
implementation and maintenance of policies and control procedures to give adequate
protection against key risk. In doing so, the Senior Executive considers and assesses the
appropriateness and effectiveness of management information and other systems of internal
control, encompassing review of any external agency in this regards and action taken or
proposed resulting from those reports.

8. REVIEW

This Policy shall be reviewed at least every year to ensure it meets the requirements of
legislation and the needs of organization.

9. AMENDMENT

This Policy can be modified at any time by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Approved by Board As on: 02.09.2014




Annexure VIII (v)

Code of Conduct

INTRODUCTION

Applicable to all Directors and Officers in Management Cadre - (hereinafter referred
to as ‘Employees’)

The Company is committed to integrity in every facet of its business. For each of us
this means conducting ourselves according to high ethical and legal standards. The
Code of Conduct sets forth the Company’s policy to comply with the local laws and
regulations. Each Designated Person is expected to comply with the code in letter
and spirit.

The code also sets forth the Company’s business ethics policy relating to business
and commercial activities and conduct by Employees. Business decisions always
must reflect high ethical standards and not be influenced by business or personal
interests that Employees may have with third parties or by unauthorized
concessions or payments to or from third parties.

Code of Conduct

A. Discrimination in Employment and Unlawful Harassment-
In the conduct of business, each employee is required to respect the rights and
cultural differences of individuals. The Company is also committed to following
the applicable labour and employment laws.

The Company prohibits all forms of unlawful discrimination, retaliation and
harassment in the workplace, including, but not limited to, unlawful
discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin,
citizenship, sexual orientation, age, physical or mental disability or any other
legally protected status. The Company also strives to achieve a work
environment that is free from unlawful discrimination, retaliation and
harassment, including sexual harassment. This obligation extends to supervisory
and non-supervisory personnel, as well as contractors, vendors, clients or visitors
to the extent that their conduct affects the work environment or interferes with
performance of work.

Employees who feel that they have been subjected to unlawful discrimination,
retaliation or harassment should notify their supervisor and/or a Human
Resource manager who promptly will investigate the matter. Employees need
not make the complaint to their supervisor or the local Human Resource
manager if they are uncomfortable in doing so, or if these individuals are




involved in the subject activity. In such circumstances, Employees may contact
the top Human Resource professional at the Corporate Office at
Ludhiana. Prompt investigative action will be taken and where appropriate,
remedial or corrective action will be taken with respect to unlawful harassment
or discrimination. Employees will not be subject to retaliation for reporting
incidents that they, in good faith, believe are violation of this policy.

B. Privacy-

The Company expects all Employees to protect individually identifiable customer
information and sensitive personal information about employees, applicants and
research study subjects from inappropriate or unauthorized use or disclosure,
and to comply with privacy and data protection policies established by the
Company as well as all privacy-related laws, regulations and treaties. The
Company maintains the right to inspect and monitor employee use of Company
property such as computers, e-mail and phone systems.

C. Dealing in Securities-

From time to time, Employees may become aware of significant information
about the Company that generally is not known outside the Company. Buying or
selling the Company’s shares with awareness of such information may violate
the law and expose the Designated Person and the Company to substantial civil
and criminal penalties. To prevent the misuse of such information and to avoid
even the appearance of improper conduct, all Employees, in addition to
complying with all applicable laws, must comply with the Company’s Insider
Trading Code.

Among other things, the Company’s Insider Trading Code prohibits Employees
from buying or selling the Company’s securities while aware of “material
information” about the Company that is not known publicly. The Code broadly
defines “material information” to include any information that a reasonable
investor likely would consider important in making a decision to buy or sell the
Company’s securities. In particular, there can be no trading in the Company’s
shares when the trading window is closed.

D. Intellectual Property-

Among the Company’s most valuable assets is its intellectual property. Intellectual
property takes different forms, including patents, trade secrets, trademarks,
copyrights, scientific, technical and business knowledge, know-how and
experience. Examples of intellectual property include applications to regulatory
agencies, formulae, data, processes, devices, patterns and drawings, research
records, customer and supplier lists and information, legal, marketing, sales and
financial analyses and compilations of information, maintained in confidence and
used in the Company’s operations.




It is the Company’s policy to enforce its intellectual property rights in an
appropriate manner consistent with the law. It is the duty of all Employees to
establish, protect, maintain and defend the Company’s rights in its intellectual
property and confidential information. This duty extends to protecting such
information after Employees leave the Company.

It is also important to the Company that all Employees discuss their ideas,
inventions or developments with the Legal Department to determine whether
these are patentable or otherwise legally protectable. Employees are required to
submit for appropriate legal review Records of Invention concerning new ideas,
inventions or developments. Legal review also must be sought when using the
Company trademarks, trade names and trade dress, when releasing Company
confidential information to persons outside the Company and when transacting
business in any way concerning the intellectual property rights of the Company.

In addition, it is the Company’s policy to respect the intellectual property rights
of others. Unauthorized use of the intellectual property rights of others may
expose you and the Company to civil litigation and damages and possible
significant fines and criminal penalties. Appropriate legal review must occur
prior to any activities that may infringe on another’s intellectual property; before
soliciting, accepting or using potentially proprietary information of others,
including the unsolicited offer of ideas by non-Company personnel; and before
selling, buying, licensing or otherwise transacting business concerning
intellectual property rights of others.

E. Environmental and Safety Laws-

The Company is committed to a safe environment and sound environmental
actions. The Company strives to comply fully with all environmental and safety
laws and regulations. All waste products and hazardous materials should be
treated, stored, handled and disposed of in full compliance with all laws,
regulations and Company practices. The unsafe storage of a potentially toxic or
hazardous material or the improper release of any such materials into the
environment must be reported promptly to your supervisor. To identify, control
and minimize waste and the use of hazardous materials. To design products that
are environmentally sound, conserve natural resources and minimize use of
hazardous materials.

F. Food, Drug and Medical Device Laws

Various laws regulate the manufacture, labeling, sale and, in some cases, the
promotion of many of the Company’s products to assure their safety, efficacy
and quality. Violations of these laws can result in severe penalties to the
Company and individual employees. The Company expects its Employees to




comply fully with such laws. In the event of a question concerning these laws,
you should consult with the Medical Department and/or the Law Department.

G. False Reporting to Government Agencies-
It is a crime, subject to fine or imprisonment, to make a false statement to any
government agency. The Company’s policy is to provide all required disclosure
to government agencies and to assure that such information is truthful and
accurate. The Company and its Employees must adhere to this policy.

H. Political Contributions-
A Designated Person/employee may contribute directly or indirectly to any
political party, candidate or, political action committee, but any such contribution
must be made on a personal basis, not on behalf of the Company, and
reimbursement must not be sought from the Company, directly or indirectly.

I. Improper Payments in the Public and Private Sectors-
Our laws prohibit bribery of public officials. The Company’s policy extends
beyond these laws and prohibits making unauthorized concessions or paying
confidential commissions and bonuses, bribes or other type of unofficial payment
to employees or officials of any government or to any third party in a commercial
transaction.

The Company and its Employees also must comply with applicable laws and
regulations that prohibit providing remuneration to induce the prescription,
purchase or order of Company products that may be subject to reimbursement or
payment by a government agency or other third party. It is the Company’s policy
to market and sell its medical products in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations.

Any person or company that represents the Company (such as a consultant,
agent, sales representative, distributor or contractor) must comply with the
Company policies prohibiting improper payments in the public and private
sectors. Payments made indirectly through an intermediary, under circumstances
indicating that such payments would be passed along for inappropriate
purposes, are prohibited.

J. Money Laundering Prevention-

Money laundering is a criminal activity in which the proceeds of a crime are
hidden or converted in some way to make them appear legitimate. The Company
is committed to complying fully with all applicable anti-money laundering
laws. The Company will conduct business only with reputable customers who
are involved in legitimate businessactivities and whose funds are derived from
legitimate sources. Reasonable steps must be taken to ensure that the Company




does not accept forms of payment that are known or suspected as means of
laundering money, such as cash payments.

K. Public Disclosures-

All disclosures made by the Company to its stockholders, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, the Stock Exchange or the investment community must
be accurate and complete and fairly present the Company's financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows in all material respects, and must be made on
a timely basis as required by applicable laws and stock exchange requirements.
The Company expects its Employees to provide prompt and accurate answers to
enquiries relating to its public disclosures and requirements.

L. Internal Controls-

All Employees have a responsibility to be aware of the Company’s system of
internal controls and the appropriate use and safeguarding of Company
assets. Employees must comply with applicable internal controls and assist in
taking corrective action in the case of control failures, including identifying
procedures not being followed properly as well as weaknesses in the internal
control system, and striving for improvements in the internal control
system. Examples of internal controls include appropriate authorizations and
approvals of expenditures, and this Code of Conduct.

M. Compliance with Code of Conduct

Any Designated Person who knows of or suspects of a violation of applicable
laws, rules or regulations or this Code of Conduct, he/she must immediately
report the same to the Managing Director. Such person should as far as possible
provide the details of suspected violations with all known particulars relating to
the issue. The Company recognizes that resolving such problems or concerns will
advance the overall interests of the Company that will help to safeguard the
Company's assets, financial integrity and reputation.

This Code may be amended, modified or waived only by the Company's Board
of Directors and must be publicly disclosed if required by any applicable law or
regulation. As a general policy, the Board will not grant any waivers to this Code.




BUSINESS ETHICS POLICY

The goal is to foster standards of conduct to ensure that business decisions are
driven by the overall obligation of all Employees to protect the assets of the
Company. Business decisions are not to be based on financial or business interests
between any employees and third parties. Unauthorized concessions or payments to
third parties are strictly prohibited.

A violation of the Company standards also may be a violation of law.

I. Conflicts of Interest:
When the Company’s Employees, and/or, in some cases, their relatives have
significant financial or business interests in another company competing or doing
business with the Company, or stand to benefit in some way from such a
relationship or activity, their efforts on the Company’s behalf could be
improperly influenced.

Consequently, all Employees should co-operate in avoiding even the appearance
of impropriety. For the purposes of this Code, the spouse, parents, grandparents,
children, grand -children and their spouses, siblings, mother-in-law, father-in
law, son-in-law, daughters-in-law, sisters-in-law and brothers-in-law of the
Employees are included.

The following are some examples (not meant to be all inclusive) of situations in
which such outside interests involving the Employees or a relative may lead to
conflict with the Company’s standards. Because this set of examples is not
inclusive, please use good judgment in the spirit of the Code in reviewing
situations as they arise:

1. The following are example of the types of activities which, are prohibited for
Employees/Designated Persons without the prior written consent of the
Managing Director:

a. Holding a significant financial interest in the business of any supplier,
competitor or customer of the Company when in a position to
influence the relationship between the Company and the supplier,
competitor or customer. For the purpose of this Code, a “significant
financial interest” means an investment of any amount in any
company, the securities of which are not publicly listed or quoted, or




2.

an investment in excess of 2% of the paid up capital of any company
that is publicly listed or quoted. It also means that borrowing from any
such company, except for a personal transaction with a bank or

comparable financing organization is not permitted.

a. Serving as a director, advisor, officer, employee or consultant of any of
the Company’s competitors.

b. Serving in any position of any commercial enterprise or other
commercial endeavor that would interfere with the performance of
duties to the Company.

c. Accepting or designating the acceptance by someone else, of any gift or
entertainment of value in any way connected with the placing of
business with or by any of the Company’s supplier or customer.

d. Purchasing any materials, equipment, property or services at a cost to
the Company in excess of their fair and reasonable value in the free,
open and competitive market.

e. Competing with the Company in the purchase or sale of any kind of
property, tangible or intangible.

f. Relatives of Employees may not accept from any third party any gift or
entertainment of value in any way connected with the placing of
business with or by any Company supplier or customer.

The following are examples of the types of activities which must be
disclosed to the Managing Director for review and response:

b. Service as a Designated Person of any commercial enterprise including,
but not limited to, any customer or supplier of the Company and any
for-profit organization in the health care field.

c. Service as a director, advisor, officer, employee or consultant of any
not-for-profit organization in the health care field.

d. Service as an official, advisor, officer, employee or consultant of any
governmental agency, subdivision thereof, or other governmentally-
related body in the healthcare field.

e. When the Employees become aware of it, the holding by a relative of a
significant financial interest (as defined above) in the business of any




supplier, competitor or customer of the Company when the Designated
Person is in a position to influence the relationship between the
Company and the supplier, competitor or customer.

f.  When the Designated Person becomes aware of it, service by relative as
a director, advisor, officer, employee or consultant of any Company
supplier, competitor or customer when the Designated Person or
his/her relative is in a position to influence the relationship between
the Company and such supplier, competitor or customer.

Any disclosure shall be considered on a case-by-case basis, and any action
deemed necessary or appropriate by the Company will be at the sole
discretion of the Company. Independent members of the Company's Board
of Directors must, in accordance with Company policy, disclose various
potential conflicts of interest, which will be evaluated by the entire Board to
determine compliance with applicable laws and stock exchange rules.
Directors involved in any conflict or potential conflict situations shall rescue
themselves from any discussion or decision relating thereto.

II. Confidential Information : The unauthorized disclosure, while a person as a
Director or employed by the Company and thereafter, of any of the Company’s
confidential business information or intellectual property such as financial data,
formulae, processes, advertising methods or prospective transactions, to any
other person, firm or corporation is prohibited. The use - directly or indirectly -
of confidential Company business information, while employed by the Company
and thereafter for personal benefit, for the benefit of immediate family members
or for the benefit of any other person, firm or corporation is prohibited. The use
of such information generally to the possible detriment of the Company also is
prohibited. Communication with securities market professionals concerning the
Company unless specifically authorized by an Officer to do so is not
permitted. In addition to these obligations of confidentiality, the Designated
Person shall be bound by any duties and obligations under any confidentiality
agreement or other agreement between the Designated Person and the Company.

III Industry Standards on Relationships with Medical Professionals and
Company Sponsorship of Educational and Scientific Symposia:The Company
complies with standards established by industry and professional groups that
concern industry relationships with medical professionals and sponsorship of
medical education and scientific symposia.




IV. Advertising and Promotional Standards: It is Company’s policy to advertise,
promote and label its products in a factual and informative manner. In addition,
all such communications must be consistent with applicable governmental
regulations. The Company’s publicity disseminated advertising and promotional
material must accurately and fairly describe the Company’s products and not be
false, misleading or deceptive. It also is Company policy only to use sales and
marketing programs and materials that have been approved in accordance with
Company procedures.




Annexure VIII (vi)
Dividend Distribution Policy

INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Kumar Autocast Limited (“Company”)
understands the importance of shareholders’ confidence and trust in the Company.
In order to preserve the same with transparency and to ensure that there is no
conflict of interest or any apprehension in the minds of its shareholders, the Board of
the Company, has adopted the Dividend Distribution Policy (“Policy”) and
procedures with respect to Dividends declared/ recommended by the Company in
accordance with the provisions of Regulation 43A of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“Listing Regulations”) as amended from time to time.

BACKGROUND AND APPLICABILITY
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(“Regulations”), require the Company to formulate and disclose a Dividend
Distribution Policy in the annual report and on the corporate website. The Board of
Directors (“Board”) of Kumar Autocast Limited (“Company”) has adopted this
Dividend Distribution Policy to comply with these requirements.

Dividend represents the profit of the Company, which is distributed to shareholders
in proportion to the amount paid-up on shares they hold. Dividend includes Interim
Dividend.

PURPOSE

The purpose of this Policy is to facilitate the process of dividend recommendation or
declaration and its pay-out by the Company which would ensure a regular dividend
income for the shareholders and long term capital appreciation for all stakeholders
of the Company.

Dividend is the payment made by a Company to its shareholders, usually in the
form of distribution of its profits. The profits earned by the Company can either be
retained in business or used for acquisitions, expansion or diversification, or it can
be distributed to the shareholders. The Company may choose to retain a part of its
profits and distribute the balance among its shareholders as dividend.

The Company would ensure to strike the right balance between the quantum of
dividend paid and amount of profits retained in the business. The Board will refer to
the Policy while declaring/ recommending dividends on behalf of the Company.




AUTHORITY

This Policy has been adopted by the Board of the Company at its Meeting held on
February 13, 2021. The Policy shall also be displayed in the Annual Report and also
on the website of the Company.

FORMS OF DIVIDENDS

» Interim Dividend

The interim dividend may be declared by the Board one or more times in the
financial year as may be deemed fit.

» Final Dividend

The final dividend is paid once for the financial year after the annual accounts are
prepared. The Board of Directors of the Company has the power to recommend the
payment of final dividend to the shareholders for their approval at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company. The declaration of final dividend shall be
included in the ordinary business items that are required to be transacted at the
Annual General Meeting.

> Special Dividend
The Board may declare/recommend special dividend as and when it deem:s fit.

PER SHARE BASIS

The dividend will be declared on per share basis only.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PARAMETERS

The Company shall declare dividend only after ensuring compliance with the
requisite regulations and directions as stipulated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, SEBI(Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time, other

SEBI regulations and any other regulations as may be applicable from time to time.

FACTORS AFFECTING DIVIDEND DECLARATION:

a) External Factors to be considered while recommending/ declaring dividend

* Any significant changes in macro-economic environment affecting India or the
geographies in which the Company operates, or the business of the Company
or of its clients;

e Any political, tax and regulatory changes in the geographies in which the

Company operates;




* Any significant change in the business or technological environment resulting in
the Company making significant investments to effect the necessary changes to

its business model;

* Any changes in the competitive environment requiring significant investment.

b) Internal Factors to be considered while recommending/ declaring dividend

Apart from the various external factors, the Board shall take into account various
internal factors including the financial parameters while declaring dividend, which
inter alia will include:

* Expected cash requirements of the Company including working capital, capital

expenditure
* Quarterly and Annual results
* Investments including Mergers and Acquisitions (M&A)
* Free cash flow generation
* Buy-back of shares

 Funds required to service any outstanding loans;
c) Retained Earnings

Retained earnings would be used to further the company’s business priorities. If
there are excess reserves beyond the medium to long term business requirements,
the retained earnings would be distributed to shareholders via Dividends or other
means as permitted by applicable regulations.

d) Parameters that shall be adopted with regard to various classes of shares

Currently, the Company does not have different classes of shares and follows the
‘one share, one vote” principle. If the Company has more than one class of shares in
future, dividend for each class would be subject to prescribed statutory guidelines as
well as terms of offer of each class to the investors of that class of shares.

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND

Dividend shall be declared or paid only out of -

1) Current financial year’s profit:

a. after providing for depreciation in accordance with law;

b. after transferring to reserves such amount as may be prescribed or as may be
otherwise considered appropriate by the Board at its discretion and as per

applicable law.




2) The profits for any previous financial year(s) after providing for depreciation in
accordance with law and remaining undistributed;

Or
3) Out of 1) & 2) both.

In case of inadequacy or absence of profits in any financial year, the Company may
also declare/ pay Dividend out of the accumulated profits earned by it in previous
years and transferred by the Company to the reserves, provided such declaration/
payment of dividend shall be made only in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules specified therein.

CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH SHAREHOLDERS MAY OR MAY NOT
EXPECT DIVIDEND

The Board will assess the Company’s financial requirements, including present and
future organic and inorganic growth opportunities, government policies &
regulations and other relevant factors (as mentioned elsewhere in this policy) and

accordingly declare dividend in any financial year.

The shareholders of the Company may not expect dividend under certain

circumstances including the following,

In the event of inadequacy of profits or whenever the Company has incurred
losses;

Significant cash flow requirements towards higher working capital requirements
/ tax demands / or others, adversely impacting free cash flows;

An impending / ongoing capital expenditure program or any acquisitions or
investment in joint ventures requiring significant allocation of capital;

Allocation of cash required for buy-back of securities;

Any of the internal or external factors restraining the Company from considering
dividend.

UTILIZATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS

Retained earnings shall be utilized in accordance with prevailing regulatory
requirements, creating reserves for specific objectives, fortifying the balance sheet
against contingencies, generating higher returns for shareholders through
reinvestment of profits for future growth and expansion and any other specific
purpose as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company shall
endeavor to utilize retained earnings in a manner that shall be beneficial to both, the

interests of the Company and its stakeholders.




PARAMETERS WITH REGARD TO VARIOUS CLASSES

Presently, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company comprises of equity
shares only. In case, the Company issues other kind of shares, the Board may

suitably amend this Policy.

CONFLICT IN POLICY

In the event of a conflict between this policy and the existing statutory regulations,

the statutory regulations will prevail.

REVIEW, AMENDMENT AND DISCLOSURE OF POLICY

This Policy may be reviewed and amended periodically as and when required by the
Board to ensure that it meets the objectives of the relevant legislation and needs of
the Company and remains effective. The Board has the right to change/ amend the

policy as may be expedient taking into account the law for the time being in force.

In the event of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s), provision(s) etc. issued
by the relevant authorities, not being consistent with the provisions laid down under
this Policy, then the same shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and this
Policy shall stand amended accordingly.

The Dividend Distribution Policy shall be disclosed in the Annual Report of the

Company and placed on the Company’s website, www.kumarautocast.com.




Annexure VIII (vii)

POLICY FOR DETERMINING OF MATERIALITY OF EVENTS

INTRODUCTION

The Policy is framed by the Board of Directors of Kumar Autocast Limited in line with
the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing
Regulations’):

- to provide an overall governance framework for determination of materiality of
events /information;

- to ensure timely and adequate disclosures of material events / information fully,
fairly, correctly and transparently to the Stock Exchange(s), in pursuance with the
Listing Regulations, to enable present and potential investors to take informed
decision/s with respect to their investment in the Company.

GUIDELINES FOR DETERMINING MATERIALITY OF EVENTS OR INFORMATION:

1. The Company shall mandatorily disclose the events / information that are deemed

to be material, as specified in Para A of Part A of Schedule III of the Listing
Regulations, without applying any test of materiality.

2. The Company shall make disclosure of events specified in Para B of Part A of
Schedule III of the Listing Regulations, on a case to case basis, depending on facts
and circumstances, based on application of the guidelines for determining
materiality, as specified below:

a) Likely impact of 10% or more on the gross turnover, or revenues or total
income as per the last Financial Statements of the Company, or likely impact of
20% or more on the net worth as per the last Financial Statements of the
Company; whichever is higher;

b) the omission of an event or information, which is likely to result in
discontinuity or alteration of event / information already available in public
domain;

c) the omission of an event or information is likely to result in significant market
reaction, if the said omission came to light at a later date;

d) any other event / information which, in the opinion of the Board of Directors of
the Company, is material and necessary to enable the security holders of the
Company to appraise its position and to avoid the establishment of a false
market in such securities.




3. The Company shall disclose all events or information with respect to its
Subsidiaries, which are material to the Company.

4. Any confidential information which, if disclosed, is likely to put at risk the
business interest of the Company, may not be disclosed. The Company shall, to
that extent, make qualified disclosure to the stock exchanges.

SCOPE OF DISCLOSURES OF EVENTS OR INFORMATION:

1. The Company shall disclose to the stock exchanges of all material events /
information, as soon as reasonably possible, but not later than 24 hours of the
occurrence of the event / information. In case the disclosure is made after twenty-
four (24) hours of occurrence of such event or information the Company shall,
along with such disclosure(s) provide an explanation for delay.

2. The Company shall disclose to the stock exchanges of all the events specified in
sub-para 4 of Para A of Part A of Schedule III of the Listing Regulations within
thirty (30) minutes of the conclusion of the board meeting.

3. The Company shall make disclosures updating material developments on a
regular basis, till such time the event is resolved / closed.

4. The Company shall provide specific and adequate reply to all queries raised by
stock exchange(s) with respect to any events or information and on its own
initiative. Further it shall confirm or deny any event or information to stock
exchange(s) reported in the media.

5. All the above disclosures would be hosted on the website of the Company for a
minimum period of five years and thereafter archived as per Company’s policy for
Preservation and Archival of Documents.

AUTHORITY TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors hereby appoint Mr. Ramesh Kumar Sharma Chairman
Director, Mr. Arun Kumar Sood Managing Director and Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood
Director (hereinafter referred as Designated Officers) as the persons authorized
severally to determine:

- the Materiality of any event or information,

- the appropriate time at which disclosure is to be filed with the stock exchanges,
and

- details that may be filed with the stock exchanges in the best interest of present
and potential investors




DISSEMINATION OF POLICY:
This Policy shall be hosted on the website of the Company at
www.kumarautocast.com and address of the web-link thereto shall be provided in the

Annual Report of the Company.

POLICY REVIEW AND AMENDMENTS:
The Board will constantly review, and if found essential, may amend this Policy from
time to time, so that the Policy remains compliant with applicable legal requirements.

SCOPE AND LIMITATION:
In the event where the terms of this Policy differ from the provisions of any existing or
new statutory enactments, Rules, Regulations or standard governing the Company,
the provisions of such statutory enactments, rules shall prevail over this Policy and
the part(s) so repugnant shall be deemed to severed from the Policy and the rest of the
Policy shall remain in force.
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CFO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
(pursuant to Regulation 17(8) and Schedule Il Part B of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

The Board of directors,
Kumar Autocast Limited

CIN

L27101PB1985PLC006100

Regd. Office: - C-179, Focal Point,
Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab

In compliance with Regulation 17 (8) read with Schedule II Part B of the SEBI (Listing
Obligation And Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchange, I hereby certify that:

A.

D.

i.
il.

1il.

Sd/-

I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year 2021-22
and that to the best of my knowledge and belief:
i.  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;
ii.  These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violates of the Company’s code of conduct.

I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and that I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining
to financial reporting and I have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in
the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which I am aware and the steps I have
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee
Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and
Instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal
control system over financial reporting.

Usha Jayaprakash
(Chief financial Officer)

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 07.09.2022
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. CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

" (Pursuant to Regﬁlation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10} (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
. - Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015} -

_ .: To,
" The Members,

. Kumar Autocast Limited,
~ C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI,
_Lu’dhiana—l41003 PB

1 have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors.
~ of Kumar Autocast Limited having CIN: 127101PB1985PLC006100 and having registered office at
' C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141003 PB, India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’),
* produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with

Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India
- (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. ‘

“1n my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors .

* Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.mea.gov.in) -as considered necessary and

. explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2022 have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the

" Securities and Exchange Board of India, Minisiry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory
Authority. '

| Sr.No Name of Director * Designation of DIN T Date of
- director : Appointment in
: < Company
1 ‘Ashish Sood Wholetime Director \ 00672179 01/10/2002
"2 | Ajay Kumar Sood - Wholetime Director 00685585 ©01/10/2007
3 | Arun Kumar Sood ~ | Managing Director \ 00685937 |  01/10/2002
' ‘4 | Rakesh Dhanda |- . Director 1 03496947 - 05/09/2021
5 _Ara'vind.Pl_‘asad _ Additional Director 08204757 Uy 12/202%
6 . | Shrey Bhutani Lo Director 09189242 26/06/202‘

L 7 | Neha Sood Director ] 08126563

: 2413, Preét Nagar, Street No.1, Link Road, Near Dhuri Railway Crossing, Ludhiana
o Contact No. : 99158-10604, 99153-60238 o |
E-mail : cskiran3393@gmail.com, hiranhpos@gmai!.com




: Further as per the data made available to me and on basis of 1nformatlon and explanatlon provided to me,
" T-am of opinion that, the Company has proper mix of Executwe and Non-executive Directors on Board
‘None of the Independent Directors have appeared or cleared the Exam required under Rule 6 of

' Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended.

Ensuring the eligibility for the 'appoin_tment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the

: '_r'esponsibili_ty of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these

- based on my veriﬁcation.

Thls certificate is s neither an assurance as to the future vxablllty of the Company nor of the efﬁcnency or

' effectlveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company L

: Place: Ludhiana

~ Date: 19.04.2022
(Klranpreet Kaur)
ACS No. 44647
CP No. 16428

UDIN: A044647D000160092
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Folio No./DP ID/ Client ID No.

No. of Shares Held

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I/We record my/our presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company at Registered Office of the
company at C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab on Friday, 30" September 2022 at
12:30 p.m.

NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDER(S) (in Block
Letters)

SIGNATURE OF THE SHAREHOLDER(S)

NAME OF THE PROXY (in Block Letters)

SIGNATURE OF THE PROXY

NOTE: You are requested to sign and handover this slip at the entrance of the meeting venue.
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

Regd. Office: - C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI,Ludhiana-141010, Punjab.
Email Id: asood @kumarautocast.comTelephone No: 0161-2671428
CIN: - L27101PB1985PLC006100

www.kumarautocast.com

Form No. MGT-11

Proxy Form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3)

of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: L27101PB1985PLC006100

Name of the company: Kumar Autocast Limited

Registered office: C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana-141010, Punjab.

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client 1d:

DP ID:

I/'We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
I.Name: ........ooevvennenenn.
Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature:
2.Name: ...o.ovviiniiiiniinnn.
Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 37™Annual general
meeting of the company, to be held on the 30" day of September, 2022, at 12:30 P.M. at C-179, Focal
Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated

below:


mailto:asood@kumarautocast.com

Sr. | Resolution(s) Vote
No. For Against

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31"
March, 2022, Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that
date, together with Report of the Auditor’s and Director’s thereon.

2. To re-appoint Director in place of Sh. Ashish Kumar Sood (DIN:
00672179), Whole Time Director, who retires by rotation in terms of
Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offer
himself for re-appointment.

3. To re-appoint Director in place of Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood (DIN:
00685585), Whole Time Director, who retires by rotation in terms of
Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offer
himself for re-appointment.

4. To re-appoint Director in place of Sh. Arun Kumar Sood (DIN:
00685937), Managing Director, who retires by rotation in terms of
Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offer
himself for re-appointment.

5. To appoint M/s VINAY & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants,
Ludhiana as the statutory auditors of the company for the period of 5
years

6. Blanket approval for related party transactions under the provisions of
section 188 of Companies Act, 2013

7. Appointment of Ms. Ritu Mehra (DIN: 09445664) as Independent
Woman Director of the Company

8. To approve reappointment of Mr. Ajay Kumar Sood, Whole Time
Director & Increase in remuneration from Rs. 3,50,000 Per Month to
Rs. 3,75,000 w.e.f 01st of October 2022

9. To approve reappointment of Mr. Ashish Kumar Sood, Whole Time
Director & Increase in remuneration from Rs. 3,50,000 Per Month to
Rs. 3,75,000 w.e.f O1st of October 2022

10. | To approve reappointment of Mr. Arun Kumar Sood, Managing
Director & Increase in remuneration from Rs. 3,50,000 Per Month to
Rs. 3,75,000 w.e.f 01st of October 2022

Signed this...... day of......... 2022.

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF

KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of KUMAR AUTOCAST
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March
2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its loss, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companics Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Reportthe'reon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not
include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in _connection‘ with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our’

~ responsibility is-to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such

other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard as we have not received any other information namely
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Respon51b1hty Report and Corporate Governance from the

- company.

When we read the other information as stated in above para, if we conclude that there
is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter {0 those
charged with governance

| Management’s Respons1b1hty for the Standalone Fmanclal Statements

' The Company’s Board of Directors is respons1ble for the matters stated in Section

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting

- Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets.of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were

- operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. :

In preparing the standalone financial statements, ‘management is tesponsible for
assessing the Company’s ability: to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as




applicable, matters related to going concern and'using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsfole for overseemg thc Company’s financial
© reporting process. :

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or
error and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if individually or in the aggregate they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As paﬁ of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing we exercise professional
Judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements whether due to fraud or error design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resultmg from
error as fraud may involve collusion forgery intentional omissions
misrepresentations or the override of internal control. :

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances Under Section

143(3)(1) of the Act we are also responsible for explaining our opinion on

- whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectlveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the approprrateness of .accounting policies wused and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures rnade by
management

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast

- significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requlred to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial




statements or if such disclosures are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern. '

¢ FEvaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the financial
statements including the disclosures and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements -

that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a

reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to

~evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone ﬁnan(:lal
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence . and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and where applicable related safeguards.

From the matters communlcatcd w1th those charged with governance we determine
those atters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of ‘
‘the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes pubhc disclosure about the
matter or when in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication. : :

"Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requlrements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”™)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the
Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters spe(nﬁed in

: paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent appl1cab1e

- 2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, w_e report that:




a)
b)
o)

d)

£)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proptar books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply
with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; o

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on

31st March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Diréctors, none of the

directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. '

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. :

In our opinion, the mariagerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022
has been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

~explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed its impact of pending litigations in the
ﬁnancial statements. Refer to Note no. 27 of Notes to Financial
statements. ' : ' '

ti) The Company has no long-term contracts including derivative contracts

iii) The company has not paid any dividend during the year and is not
required to transfer amounts to the Investor Educatzon and Protection
Fund :

- 1v) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
~ and belief, as disclosed in note 27 to the standalone financial statements
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)y

by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly




- lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
“or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge -
and belief, s disclosed in note 27 to the standalone financial statements,
no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or
entities, including foreign -entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any (c) Based on
the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
~ Beneficiaries.

“(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered

reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our noticé that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement

v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend dunng the year and
has not proposed final dividend for the year.

PLACE: LUDHIANA
DATED: 36.65.2022

Partné'r.
M.INQO. 0906569

unw: 22690549 HINF& WY TS



Annexure-A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Audﬂors Report to the members of the
Company on the standalone ﬁnan(nal statements for the year ended 31st March 2022,

-we report that:

iy - a {A) The company has maintained -proper records. showing full.
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property,
Plant and Equipment. :

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible Assets; :

b)  Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the -

: management during the year and there is a regular programme of

verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regards to the
size of the company and the nature of its. assets and as informed, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

¢) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease
agreement for land on which building is constructed, registered sale
deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report that,
the title in respect of self-constructed buildings and title deeds of all
-other immovable properties (other than properties where the company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under Property,
Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date. o |

d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equ1pment
(including nght of Use assets) during the year;

e¢)  No proceedings _have been initiated durmg the year or are pending
against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of

‘ 1988) and rules made thereunder.

i) a)  As per the information furnished, the -inventory has been physically

verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable, and, the coverage and procedure
of such verification is appropriate having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its operation. No dlscrepanmes of 10% or -
more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed between -
the physical stock of inventory and the books of accounts. '




ii)

V)

vi)

vii)

b)

a)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess
of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or
statements filed with such banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company.

The company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee

or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,

secured or ._uri.s_ecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(iii) of CARO 2020 is not applicable; '

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not given any loans, purchased investment,
given guarantees and security which are covered under the provisions
of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, therefore no comment is called for;

The Company has not accepted ariy deposit or amounts which are
deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order

‘is not appllcable

 According to information and explanation given to us, the Central
- Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under

section 148(1) of the Act for ‘any of the serv1ces rendered by the
Company;

According to the information and explanations given to us and the
records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company
is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues
inclﬁdin'g goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, excise duty, customs duty,

‘value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues with the

appropriate authOrities. _

There are no. undlsputed amounts payable in ‘respect of Goods and

Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added
Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,




viii)

xi)

b)

b)

b)

12022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.-.
There are no statutory dues as referred to in sub—clause (a) whlch have
not been dep051ted on account of a dispute.

There were no {ransactions relating to previously unrecorded income
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

- The term loans outstanding at the beginning of the year, and the new

term loans raised during the year, were, applied for the purposes for,
which, they were obtained. '
On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company,
funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during
the year for long-term purposes by the Company. -
The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate '
companies, hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate
companies, hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly

or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

.. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on
‘or by the company has been noticed or reported during the course of

our audit;
No report under sub-sectlon (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act

~ has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Governmient, during the year and up to the date of this report.




xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

XV)

| xvi)

xvii)

 xviii)

No whistle-blower cbmplaints were received during the year by the
Company. | |

- In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)

of the Order is not applicable; -

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the Company, all transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of

- Companies Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in

the financial statements as required by ‘the applicable accounting
standards; -

‘The company is not required to keep an internal audit system given the

size and nature of its business and hence reporting under clause 3(xiv)
of the Order is not applicable;

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,

© 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered ﬁnder
section 45-]IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reportmg
under clause 3(xvi) of the Order 1s not applicable.

~The Company has incurred the following cash losses during the
- financial year covered by our audit which is as follows and has no cash’

losses in the mnnedmtely precedmg ﬁnanc1al year.

Financial Year | Loss (Rs. in Lacs)
2021-2022 ' | (52.87)

_ There has been no re51gnat10n of the statutory auditors durmg the year

and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the order is not

: apphcable




.- xXix)

XX)

PLACE: LUDHIANA
DATED: 30.05.2022

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other

- information accompanying the financial - statements, the auditor’s

knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report. The
company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing .at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet daie. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that
our repoi'ting is based on the facts up to the date of the‘alidit report and -
future events or conditions that may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a .going concern. We neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all the liabilities falling due within a period od one year

~from balance sheet date, will get dlschaxged by the company as and

when they fall due;

" The cdmpény is not required to spent under CSR activity w/s 135 of

Compantes Act 2013, hence reportmg under clause 3(xx) of the Order
is not apphcable 3

FOR ASHWANI &ASSOCIA S

M.NO. 090569 ‘
UDENE J26905E ATHFE WY To 5



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

 We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KUMAR

AUTOCAST LIMITED, (“the Company™) as of 31% March 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

- Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects. a '

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
cffectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaliating the




design and operating effécﬁveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The-
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement -of the ﬁnancml statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company s Internal ﬁnancml controls
system over ﬁnanc1al reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
‘preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) providé reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company's assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial
statements,

" Inherent Limitations of Inte'rnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal ﬁnanclal controls over ﬁnanc1a1<
- reporting, including the possibility of coilusion or improper management override of

controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
‘over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31% March 2022, based on the
- internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of mternal control stated in the Gu1dance Note-




DATED: 30.05.2022

PLACE: LUDHIANA

~on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

FOR ASHWANI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

fort

Kul Bhushan Goyal
Partner
M.NO. 090569
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED
G - 179, Phase-VI, Focal Point, LUDHIANA

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2022

{Amount Rs in Lakhs) -

P!..ACE LUDHIANA

DATE: 30.05.202
|uom 2904eL 59 AT W Quu'n(

For and on behalf of Board of

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
| ASSETS
(1) |Non Current Assets
(&) Properiy, Plant and Equipment 3 443.58 500,88
(b} Financial Assets - :
{i) Trade Receivables 4 279 7.66
{ii) Other Financial Assets 5 73.24 76.68
) 519.61 585.22
{2} [Current Assets -
(a} Inventories 6 146.61 144.36
(b) Financial Assets
{i} Trade Receivable 4 1,335.10 4,360.0%
{it) Cash and Cash equivalents 7 152.96 332.46
() Current Tax Assets (Net) 8 14.65 - 8.87
(d) Other Current Assets 9 8.89 23.53
1,658.21 1,869.23
TOTAL 2,177.82 2,454.45
il {EQUITY & LIABILITIES
{1} . {Equity
(a) Equity Shara Capital 10 1,037.40 1,037.40
(b) Other Equity 1" 195.48 302.42
1,232.88 1,339.82
{2} iLiabilities
“Non Current Liabilities
(a). Financial Lizbilities ‘
(i} Barrowings 12 26.62 105.67
{ii} Trade Payables 16
{a) Outstanding dues of Small Enterprises & :
‘Micro enterprises " -
{b) Outstanding dues of Small Enterprises &
Micro enterprises ’ 4.40 4.40
(b) Long Term Provisions 13 18.61 34.88
{c) Deferred Tax Liabilifies (Net)’ 14 - 22,46 - 24.08
) 72.09 169.04
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilifies
{i) Borrowings 15 462.97 501.8%
{it) Trade Payables 16
{a} Outstanding dues of Small Enterprises &
Micro enterprises 108.36 §1.23
“{b) Outstanding dues of Sma[l Enterpnses & .
Micro' enterprises " 132.80 140,39
{iliy Other Financial Liabilities 17 119.17 225.74
{p) Other Current Liabilities 18 2087 © 3419
(c) Shori Term Provision 19 28.68 12.23
872.85 945.59
TOTAL 2,177.82 2,d54.45
As per our report of even date attached
Significant Accounting Policies 1
INotes forrning part of Accounts ; 2

KUMAR SOCD
) DIRECTOR
DIN NO. 00585937 DN NO. 00685585
/O S Uravav
US AYAPRAKSH PRANAY KHANNA
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY

s




KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

C - 179, Phase-Vl,-Focal Point, LUDHIANA

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31%" MARCH,2022

{Amount Rs in Lakhs)

NOTE

AS AT
31.03.2022

AS AT
31.03.2021

v
vl
Vil

- Vil

Xl

p¢H

"|(Comprising Profit! {Loss) and Othe.r

As per our report of even date attached.

INCOME

REVENLUE FR"OM OPERATIONS
OTHER INCOME

TOTAL INCOME {II)

|EXPENSES

Cost of Materials Consumed i

Change in Inveniories of Finished Geoods, Work-
in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Other Expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES (IV)

|Profiti{loss] before exceptional items and tax

from continuing oberations (Il-1V)
Exceptional items ’

Profit/ {loss} before tax from continuing
operations (V-V])

TAX EXPENSE :

_ Current Tax
Earlier Year

Deferred Tax

Profit/ {Loss) for the Year from continuing -
operations VLV

Other Comprehensive income

{A) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or -
loss .

Other (specify nature)

Income tax effect

(B) tems that will not be reclassified to profit |
or loss : '

Re-measurement {gains) losses on defined
benefit plans ‘

Income tax effect

Other Comprahensive Income for the year
nat of Tax

Totat Comprehensive Income for the Year
(IX+X) '

Comprehensive Income for the Year}
'Earnings per equity share of Rs.10 each

(1) Basic '
(2} Diluted

Slgnificant Accounting Policles
Notes forming part of Accounts

20
21

.22
23
24
25

26

0.04

4,306.59
'5.83

4,312.42

3,009.02

10.65
516.61
37.99
60.00
788.02
4,425.29

(112.87)

(112.87)

0.04

(2.72) ' {2.68)

- (4.33) -

1.09

{(M0.18)

{3.24)

44.05

3,793.00
.60

~ 3,790.69

2,236.66

(15.51)

510.93
46.94
60.74

811.29

3,651.05

44.05

{10.02)

2112
(5.32)

(113.43)

{1.06)
{1.06)

148.64

148.64

34.03

114.61

15.80

¥INCIATES

For.and on behalf of Board of Directors

DIN NO. 00685937

|PLACE: LuDHIANA W ‘ Vﬂﬁ vav”
DATE: 30.05.2022 USHAKVAPRAKSH PRANAV KHANNA -
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY

DIRECTOR

KYMAR SOOD

DIN NO. 00685585

luin: 3090 (E9 AT WEQWYTel




;. : ‘ ' KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED
- ' CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE.YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH,2022

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR 'ITHE YEAR ENDED 3tst MARCH, 2022

- . ) ) . {Amount Rs in Lakhs
- Year Ended| . Yoar Ended
. AL03.2022 31,03

(A} |cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year . : {i12.87) 148.64
Adiusteents for: | . ‘
' Depreciation . .- 80.00 . 60.74
: {ProfitifLoss on sale. of Fixed Asset - 4,13
Interest and finance chargas 37.99 46.94
interest income . . . (5.24} {6.48)
Remeasurement of acturtal {gainyloss ) : . (4.33} 21142
Operating profit before working capital changes . ' {15.79}); 232.85
Adjustments for ’ - .
{increase} / decreasa in invantoriss (2.26} (19.17)
(ncrease) / decrease in trade receivables 29.78 . BBAT ]
(ncrease} / decrease In other financial assets {excluding advance tax) 3.44 {4.85)
(increase} / decrgase in other current assets : 14.64 {4.41)
increase / (decrease) in trade payables . 69,54 } : - (82.75)
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities . (asz)f 65.54
increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities and provision (excluding provision for tax) {137.88) 138.33
Changes in Weorking Capital . {36.07} 174.86
Cash generated from operations : : ) (51.86) 407,71
income tax refund/ (paid) (5.82} {47.70)
|Net Cash flow generated from operating activities . {57.68) 260.01
{B} |Cash flow from investing activities
Additions to PPE and intangible assets {including movement in cwip) . : (2.70) (88.44)
Proceeds from sale/ disposal of property, plant and eqmpmem R - 8.85
Interest recalved : 5.24 6.48
[Net cash flows {used in} investing activities . : i 2.54 . (73.11)
(C) [Cash flow from financing activities '
(Repayment)/Proceeds from fong term barrowings ) {79.06) 33.85
finterest and finance charges paid {37.99) (46.94}
Net cash flows {used in)! generated from financing activitles {117.05)] - (12.89}
Net change in cash and cash equlvalents (A+B+C}) M72.19) 273.91
Cash and cash equivalents- opening balance {49.62) (323.54}
Cash and cash equivalents- closing balance {221.82) (49.63)

Notes to cash flow statement:
Cash and cash eguivalents inctude :

Cash on hand : ' ' 12| . 3.56
Margin Money Deposit against bank guarantes ' 376\ 36.98
Cash tradit . . ©L (BT4TTY (382.09)
; Balances with banks: . 147.08 N 291.02
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yoar . {221.82) ) [49.83)

For and on behalf of Board of Dj

MAR
. DIRECTOR OR
BIN NO. 10685937 " DINNO. 00685585

‘ v
W THnva
USHA RAKSH PRANAYV KHANNA

CHIEF FINANGIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY




KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED
G - 179, Phase-Vl, Focal Point, LUDHIANA

{Amount Rs in Lakhs}

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2022

EQUITY

(A} Equity Share Capital

{1} Current reporting period

Balance at the baginning of the current Changesin | Restated balance at the beginning | Changes in equity share |Balance at the end of the
raporting pericd- Equity Share of the current reporting pericd capital during the current |current reporting period
: Capital due to year
prior period
, ©etrors
" i 1,037.40 - - - 1,037,40/
(2) Previous reporting period : .
Balance at the beginning of the previous | Changesin | Reslated balance at the beginning. |Changes in equity share (Balance at the end of the
~ reperting period - Equity Share of the previcus reporting capital during the previous previous reporting period
. Capital due to | petiod year
prior period
errors
518.70 - - 518.70 1,037.40
B. Other Equity
{1) Current reporting period - ) .
’ Reservas and Surplus Total
Capital Other Reserves Retained Other items of Other
Researve {General Earnings Comprehensive Income
Reserva) : {Valuation of Gratuity)
Balznce at the beginning of the current’ - 14.60| 113.53 190.10 (16.80) ac2.42
reporting period
Total Comprehensive kcome for the - - - 3.24 3.24
current year )
Transfer to retained earnings - - (11019} - {116.19)
Balance at the end of the current reporting 14.60 113.53 - 79.90 (12.56) 495.47
|period . i . : :
{2) Previous reporiing period
Reserves and Surplus :
R Other items of Other
“Capital Other Reserves Retained Comprehensive Income | Totai
Reserve (R(::;:\::; Earnings {Vaiuation of Gratuity} ‘
Balance at the beginning of the pravious 14.60 113,53 594.18 - 722.31
reporting pariod ] .
| Totat Comprehensive Income for the - - - (15.80) {15.80)
revious year
!Transfer fo retained sarnings - . - 114.61 - 114.61
{Bonus Shares alloted - - (518.70) - (518.70)
1Balance at the end of the previous 14.60 113.53 120.10 {15.80) 302.42
regorting period .

PLACE: LUDHIANA

DATE: 30.05.2022

Mote: Remeasurment of defined benefit plans and fair value changes relating to own credit risk of financial kabilities designated at fair value ihrough_ profit
“Jor loss shall be recognised as a part of retained earnings with .separate disclosure of such items alo
shown as a separate column under Reseryes and Surplus "

ng with the relevant amounts in the Notes or shall be
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KUMAR AUTbCAST LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

1.  CORPORATE INFORMATION

Kumar Autocast Limited (‘the Company’) is a public limited Company domiciled in
India and incorporated on January 9, 1985 under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 having its registered office C-179, Focal Point, Phase VI, Ludhiana Pb 141010.
The Company is listed on Metropolitan Stock Exchange (MSE). The Company is
engaged in the manufacturing of General Casting of Steel for Auto Parts. The

- Company's manufacturing facilities are located at Focal Point, Ludhiana, Punjab. The

Financial statements were authorized by the Board of Directors for issue in
accordance with resolution passed on 30.05.2022. ‘

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 BASIS OF PREPRATION:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rutes, 2015. Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 have
been prepared in accordance with IND AS notified under the Companies (Indian .
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities:

i) Defined benefit plans-plan assets are measured using the current value of plan
assets and current actuarial assumptions which should reftect the benefits offered

under the plan and plan assets before and after the plan amendment, curtailment and
settlement. -

The finahcial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR') and all values are
rounded to nearest lacs {INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated. '

2.2. CURRENT VERSUS NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

) The Company presenis assets and liabiliies in the balance sheet based on
current/non- current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:




- Expected to be realized or mtended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle :

-~ Held prinﬁariiy for purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted f_fom be'ing exchanged or used to settie a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when: |

- It is expected to be settled in normal oberating cycle

- It is held primarily for purpose of trading |

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at ieast
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other-li'abilities‘ are classified as non-current. -

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non- Current assets
and liabilities. ‘ -

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve
months as its operating cycle.

' 2.3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, Plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses
directly attributable and related to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets.
and are further adjusted by the amount of GST credit availed wherever applicable.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company depreciates them separately based on their respective useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a repiacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset
after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognltlon cnterla for
a provision are met.

An item of property, plant- and equment and any significant part mltially recognised is
~derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated

= ERN:000497N
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as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equ:pment under
instaliation / under development as at the balance sheet date. :

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate. - -

. Depreciation .on prope'rty,‘ plaht and equipment is prdvided on pro rata basis on

straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by management
and in the manner prescribed in Schedule 1l of the Companies Act 2013.

2.4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

intangible assefs acquired separately are measured_ on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development . cost, are not capitalised and the
related expenditure is reflected in statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

The useful lives of intang-ible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and

- assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may

be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

- Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future

economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent
with the function of the intangible assets. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed
of. _

Intangible assets with finite useful I:fe are amortised on a straight line baS|s over their
estimated useful life.

l'o
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2.5 ‘IVMPAIRMENT OF NON-’ FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or Companies of assets.
Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available.
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation mode! is used.
Impairment losses including impairment on inventories are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

2.6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A f:nanmal instrument is any contract that gives rise to a fmancnai asset of one enttty
and a financial Ilabtllty or equity instrument of another entity.

. The Company classifies its financial assets In the following measurement categories:

- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through proﬂt or loss)

- - Those measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initiaily at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are ctassmed in following
categories:

- Debt instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCIH)
- Debt instruments at amortised cost

- Equity instruments

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised
entirely in the statement of proﬁt and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or

L)
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recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other
comprehensive income). For investment in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held. For investment in equity instruments,
this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for equity instruments at FVTOCI.

' Debt instruments at amortised cost

A Debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are
met: ' '

a) Business Model Test: The objective is to hold the debt instrument to collect the
contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior fo its contractual
maturity o realize its fair value changes).

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the debt instrument give
rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on principal amount outstanding.

This. category is most relevant to the Company. After initial- measurement, such

financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
* interest rate (EIR) method: Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR.
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the. -
contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit
losses. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applles to trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI

- A Debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if
following criteria are met:

a) Business Model Test: The objective of financial instrument is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and for selling financial assets.

b} Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the debt instrument give
rise on specific dates to cash ﬂows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on principal amount outstanding.

- Debt instrument included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as
at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other
comprehensive income (OCI), except: for the recognition of interest income,
impairment ‘gains or losses and foreign’ exchange galns or losses which are
recognised in statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of assét, cumulative gain

or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equit




profit & loss. Interest earned whilst holdmg FVTOCI f' nancial asset is reported as
mterest income using the EIR method.

‘Debt instfruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for flnanclat instruments. Any financial instrument, which
does not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCH, is classified as at FVTPL. A
gain or loss on a Debt instrument that is. subsequently measured at FVTPL and is not
a part of a hedging relationship is recognised in statement of profit or loss and
presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains or losses in the
period in which it arises. lnterest income from these Debt instruments is included in
other income.

Equity investments of other entities

All equity investments in scope of IND AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which IND AS103 applies are classified as at
FVTPL. For ali other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable

-election to present in other comprehensive income all subsequent changes in the fair

value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC!, then all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI.
There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumuiative gain or loss within

~equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair

value with all changes recognised in the Profit and Ioss
Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e, removed from the Company’s
statement of financial position) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass through” arrangement and either;

(a) The Company has transferred the nghts to receive cash flows from the financial
assets or _

(b) The Company. has retained the contractual right to reeeat/e the cash flows of the

financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or

© more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred’ substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial
assets. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not -
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transferred 'substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial
assets, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where
the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is ‘continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets.

in accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment foss on the follow:ng financial
' asset and credit risk exposure

- Financial assets me_asured at amortised cost;

- Financial assets measured at fair value through. other comprehensive income
(FVTOCH);

The Company follows slmpllfled approach” for recognition of impairment loss
ailowance on:

- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;
~ All lease receivables resulting f_rbm the transactions within the scope of IND AS 17

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix
to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected
life of trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward looking estimates are analyzed. ‘

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is
used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the Company reverts to recognizing lmpan"ment loss allowance based on 12-
months ECL. : -

(ii) Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial Ilablllties at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables ‘net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company financial liabilities include loans and borrowmgs




including bank overdraft, trade payable, trade deposits, retention money, liabilities
towards services, sales incentives and other payables. :

The measurement of fmancual liabilities depends on thelr classmcation as described
below: -

Trade Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company
prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and
are usually paid within 120 days of recognition.. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using EIR method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through p'rofit_ or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial fiabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through. profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or

loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in

IND AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCI. These gains/ loss are
not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer
the cumutative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated
any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

. Boi‘r‘owings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After

initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization
process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amorttzatlon is included as finance costs in the statement of pI'Oflt and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require
a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. Financial guarantee coniracts are recognised initially as a liability at
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of




loss allowance determined as per lmpalrment requirements of iND AS 109 and the
amount recognised less cumulative amortization. :

‘ Derecogmtlon

~ Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged

or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are

substantially modified, such an-exchange or medication is treated as the derecognition

of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments:

Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, o realize the assets and

- settle the liabilities s:multaneously

Reclassification of financial assets:

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets

- which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are

debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Company’s senior management ‘determines change in the business -
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the
Company's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the
business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an
activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets,
it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the
first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business
model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses -
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

2.8 INVENTORIES
a) Basis of valuation:

i) Inventories other than scrap materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value after providing cost of obsolescence, if any. However, materials and other items
held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the
finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or

above cost. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an itém-by—
itemn basis. :

i) Inventory of scrap materials have been valued at net realizable value.
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b) Method of Valuation:

i} Cost of raw materials has been determined by using moving weighted average
cost method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.

if) Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes direct labour and an
appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads and excise duty as
applicable. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity
of production facilities. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis.

iii} Cost of traded goods has been determined by using First in First out (FIFO)
method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from tax authorities} and all other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. :

iv) Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

2.9 TAXES |
Tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax.
a) Current Tax

i} Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be paid {o or recovered from the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income
Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) enacted
in India by using tax rates and the tax laws that are enacted at the reporting date.

i} Current income tax relating to item recognised outside the statement of profit and

loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
equity). Current tax items are recognised m correlatlon to the underiylng transactions
either in OC! or directly in equity

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between

. the tax bases of assets and liabilities and thelr carrying amounts for financiat reporting
- purposes at the reporting date. :

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit

~ will' be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
* forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and

7 reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufftcrent taxable profit will be
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available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the

- extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to

apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is
recognised outside the statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive

- income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying

transaction either in OCI or direct in equity.

2.10 REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Sale of Goods

The Company recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods or services

is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to whtch the .
‘ Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Rev_enue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds,
credits, price concessions, incentives, or other similar items in a contract when they
are highly probable to be provided. The amount of revenue excludes any amount
collected on beha!f of thlrd parties.

The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are
delivered to customer or when it is delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is when

_ the control over product is transferred to the customer. In contracts where freight is

arranged by the Company and recovered from the customers, the same is treated as

a seéparate performance obligation and revenue is recognized when such freight
servzces arerendered.

In revenue arrangements With' multiple performance obligations, .the Company
accounts for individual products and services separately if they are distinct — i.e. if a-

‘product or service is separately identifiable from other items in the arrangement and if

a customer can benefit from it. The consideration is allocated between separate
products and services in the arrangement based on their stand- alone selling prices.

Revenue from sale of by products are included in revenue.




- b) interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the

~ principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that

exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.11 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(1} Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to
be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employee service
upto the end of the reporting. period and are measured at the amount expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefrt obligations in the balance sheet.

* (i) Other long-term employee benefit obligations _

a} Gratuity

The Employee’s Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by
Company. The liabilities with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method on the balance sheet date. The difference, if
any, between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year end and

- the balance of funds is provided for as assets/ (liability) in the books. Net interest is
~ calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The

Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obhgat;on under
Employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss:

1. Service costs’ compnsmg current service costs, past-service costs, gams and losses
on curtailments and non-routine settlements

- 2. Net interest expense or income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassmed to profit or loss in subsequent
periods. :

- b) Provident fu‘nd

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no leigation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.




The Company recognizes contribution payable through provident fund scheme as an
expense, when an employee renders the related services. If the contribution payable
to scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excesses
recognised as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a
reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

c) Compensated Absences

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next 12 months is treated as
short term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement and is discharge by the year end.

2.12 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government Grants, if any are recognised at their fair value when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be recelved and all the attached conditions will be
complied with.

‘When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic

basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal -
amounts over the expected useful fife of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and grant are
recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful

life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

2.13 SEGMENT ACCOUNTING:

The company has only single segrhent of .business.' Hence segment accounting is not
required.

2.14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares)

that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, w:thout a corresponding
change in resources

For the purpose of cafculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares

- outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentialty dilutive equity

shares
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2.15 BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds and charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of effective
interest rate. :

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other
borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they occur.

2.16 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately
- disclosed to enable a full understanding of the Company's financial performance.
 ltems which may be considered exceptional are significant restructuring charges,
gains or losses on disposal of investments of subsidiaries, associate and joint
- ventures and impairment losses/write down in the value of investment in subsidiaries,
1 associates and joint ventures and significant disposal of fixed assets.

217 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks 'and on hand
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
- subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

- 2.18 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obiigation {legal or
constructive) as a. result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the.amount of the obligation. These estimates are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a

current pre-tax rate that refiects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
‘recognised as a finance cost.

Conting’ent liabilitie‘s

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arlses from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obllgatlon A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare

- -cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be




measured reliably. Thé Company does not recognize a ' cortdingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the probablllty of outflow of

resources is remote.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contlngent assets and commitments are rewewed at

each balance sheet date

2.19 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet
date

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: |

(i) In the principal market for asset or liability, or

(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the

~asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantagéous market must be accessible by the Company.

: Thé. fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or hablllty, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest. :

A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it-to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use. :

The Company uses valuétion_ -techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Ali assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in actlve markets for identical assets or

-I:abtlrtles

. Level 2- Val_uatibn technigques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
. fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair vaiue measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring

.basis, the Company getsrmines whether transfers have .oscurred between levals in




- the hierarchy by re-asséssing categorization (baséd on th'e lowest level input that is
significant to fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explainéd above. -
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KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

. {Rs in Lags)
NOTE - 4 TRADE RECEIVABLE
) Unsecured C .
L Trade receivable from Related pames Considered Good ) 1,067.98 - 923.79
‘ Trade receivable - Considered Good _ 269.91 443,88
Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - -
] : ) : 1,337.89 1,367.67
‘ Less: Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Debts - -
: 1,337.89 . 1,367.67
Trade Receivables ageing schedule (Current Year)
Particulars ‘ _Qutsxandmnmteunmnn_munda_fmm.due_dm_nf_namm_ © Total
Lessthan & |6 months -1 1-2 2-3 years More than 3 ‘
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — | i 279 - ; a9
idered d . ’ : . ] ,337.89%
congidere goo 1.335.10 ) e ) ‘
Trade Receivables ageing schedule (Previous Year)
Particuiars Outsggngihg for following. perigds from due date of payment 1 Total
Lessthan 6 |6 months -1 1-2 2-3 years More than 3 :
) Undisputed Trada recevabie T
i} Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good .  1,360.01 : -1 ) 7.66 1,367.67




KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED |
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

. (Rs in Lacs)
AS AT AS AT
34.03.2022 31.03.2021
NOTE - 5 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security Deposits _ 71._74 71.75
Interest accured but not due - 2.97
Licence fees PPCB 1.50 1.96
73.24 76.68
NOTE-6 !NVENTORIES*
Raw Material 55.34 42 .44
Finished Goods 32.68 £55.48
Stores & Spares 11.06 | 8.39
Others Material 47.53 38.05
146.61 .144.37

* At cost or net reaiisable value, whichever is lower




" KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

, {Rs in Lacs)
NOTE - 7 CASH '& BANK BALANC_E
' Qash and Cash Equiv_alenfs _
Cash on Hand 212 3.56
‘Balances with Scheduled Banks
in Current Account 117.08 291,92
Bank of Baroda - 0.18
HDFC Bank Lid. {Current Afc- 01953) - 5.18
ICICI Bank Ltd. (Current Afc-12454) 1.09 0.17
ICICt Bank Ltd. (Current Afc-4052) 0.25 0.24
State Bank of India -37763416724 - 0.13
Cheques deposited but not cleared - 115.74 1. . 286.02
Margin Money Deposit against bank guarantee 33.76 | 36.9%
Total | ~152.96 332.46
‘NOTE- 8 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) _
Advance Tax- 14.65 8.87
14.65 8.87
NOTE - 9 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS_
Other Advances
Advances for Material & Services 4.40 18.54
HP CNG prepaid card 0.07 -
Prepaid expenses 2.18 4.54
Prepaid Insurance 1.45 -
: 8.09 23.08
Balances with Statutory/Government Authorities
GST on Audit Fees Recoverable 0.67 0.24
Paytm/NHAI Fastag ‘ 0.22 0.11
TDS Receivable on interest - 0.09
0.80 0.45
8.89 23.53




HUMAR AUTOGAST LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 1, 2022

NOTES TO ACCOURTS {Rs in Lacs) !
AS AT AS AT
31.03.2022 3.03.2021
NOTE - 16 SHARE CAPITAL
’ Authorised
105 (Previgus Year -2021 X105) 7
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- sach . 1,066.00 3 1,050.00

Hote

Issued, Subscribed 8 Pald Up

103.74" tPravious Year - 2021 {103.74)%
Equity Shares of Rs, 19/~ aach Fuily Pald up
*includes 101.27 Bonus Shares.

Note - 10.1 Detalls of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares In the Company

(Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ each Fully Patd up)
1 Sh. Ajay Kumar Sood '
2 Sh, Arun Kumar Sood -
3 Sh. Ashish Kumar Sood
4 &mt. Shama Sood

Note - 10.2 Reconcliiation of shares outstanding at the beginning and

atthe end of the reposting year

Equity Shares

Equity shares at the beginning of the year

Add: Eguity share issusdicancelled durlng ihe yeer
Less: Equily share Issuad/canceiled during the year
Equity sharss at the end of tha year

10:3 Terma/RIghts attached to Equity Shares

1,050.00

1,037.40

1,037.48 |

] 1,050:00

1,037.4¢
1,637.4¢

T LE %

. % Holding % Holding
No. of shares in the class No. of shares in the class.
1,362,280.00 13.04 1,352,400.00 13.043
3,525,900.00 33.99 3,525,800.00 33.98
1,640,00.00 } 1581 1,640,400.66 {* 15.8%
569,100.00 5.49 569,100.60 849
" Mo, of ghares Amocunt Mo. of sharas Amount
10,374,000.00 1,037 40 5,187.000.00 518.70
- - £,187 000.00 518.70
18,374,000.00 1,037.40 10,374,000.00 1,037.40

The Company has anly Equity Share Capital as such no Preference Shares are subscrived and Pald up. There is no partiy pald up. Eqully Shara.issued Caplial has equal
right of all sharehoiders including distribution of dividend and repayment of capital. No part of the share of the compaay has held by any hoiding company or Its uttimate

holding company including subsidiaries or associates thereof,

10.4 Aggregate number of shares bought back, or issued 'as-lully pald up purstiant to contract without payment heing recelved In cash or by way of bonus

Note
shares during the pertod of five years Immediately preceding the date of Batance Sheet
- - No. of Shares
As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
Equity shares alictted as fully paid-up pursuant fo contracts for consideration other .
1 fhan cash - -
Equity shares aliotted as fufly paid up bonus shares by capltalisation of securities
2 premium account, surplus reserve and genaral reserva " 5,187,000.00
Equity shares issued undar the Employee Stock Opllon Plan/ Employee Stock
3 Purchase Plan as part consideration for services rendered by employees - -
" Total - 5,187,000.00
Note 10.5 Promoter Detafis
JEquity Shares held by prometars at the and of the year . % Change during
— . the year
8. No. _|Promoter Name : No. of total sharesi“& of fotal sharas
1 Sh. Arun Kumar Sood 3525900 F 33.99 -
2 Sh, Ashish Sood 1,640,100 15.81 -
3 3h. Alay Kumar Seod 1,552,280 13.04 -
4 &mt. Shama Sood 569,100 548 -
5 3mt, Seema Sood 424,200 4.08 -
[ Sm¢. Alka Sood 2,100 0.02 -
TOTAL 7,513,680.00 72.44 -
NOTE- 11 OTJHER EQUITY As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
{l} Reserve & Surplus
(a} Capltal Reserve 14.60 14.66
- (b} General Reserve
- As Per Last Balanse Sheat 113.53 113.53
(c} Retalned Earning
As Per Last Balance Sheet 174.30 594.18
{Add)f Less: Loss for the current year {110.19), 11481
Less: Bonus Share Alloted during the year T 518.70
8411 19016
{lly Other Comprehensive ncome
{a) Remeasurement of Defined baneflt plan s
Re-measurement i.’gams)l Iosses on defined benefit plans {(Net of Income Tax effect) {3.24)
195.48




KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED
‘ . . NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2022

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS . {Ra in Lacs)
| . - ] A8 AT AS AT
| : . 31.03.2022 . 31.03.2021

. NOTE -| 12 LONG TERM BORROWINGS
5 ' " |sEcurFDLcANS

Tertn Loans Froim Banke |
Rupes Leans

.a) Vehicle Eosn

-From HOFG Bank 335 3.35
‘(Inslaiment of Ra 38380+, Due dale of loan paymenl la 05.12.2023, secured .
agalnst Truak purchased) .
-From Kotek Mahindra Prime Lid . - 490
"(instalment of Ra. 47360/ Due date of loan payment [s 01 0z, 2023, secured
agialnst car plrshased)

b} Plant & Machinery
-From SiDBI . 2397 45.20

(Loan afs DOOIOYDS- Pnnmpnl amount of Re, 416500, loen repﬂynbb by
+0.08.2023)

(Loan afs DODOT28L. Principsi amount of Rs, 58500, loan repayable by
10.08.2028)

{Losn afe DOOO31FY- Principal amount of Ra. 44600, foan repayabla by

[ 10.41.20258) )

{Ldans are secured againsl Plant & Machinary]

c} COVID LOAN
--From ICICI Bank Lid ’ . 87.60
~From SIDB! . . - . 1484
26.62 106,87
KOTE -[13 LONG TERM PROVISIONS.
Provislons for Employee Benafits. R
Praviaion for Gratuity 1881 34.88
13.81 34.88
NGTE -{#4 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES {NEﬁ
: Income Tax expensa In statement of profit and loas comprises: . .
Gurent ingatne Tax Charge . 44.05
{Adiustment of Tax lBlaan to earker yoars . . ) . 0.04 -
Dsforred Tax
Relating Lo Criginaion and revaraalofTemmrery diffarences . (2.73): - . (10.02);
Income Tax axni rtad in tha of Profit or Loss. . { _ {ae8y {2400 ]
Other Comprohensive Income
Re-meaeuremant {gaina}losees on definad banefil plans 1.08 6,32
Income Tax rofatad Hems raoognised in OCI during the year 1,08 )i {8.32)
R of Tax axpense and the profit by
i India's domestic tax rate: .
| Acsounting Profit Befors Tax L 11z 148.04
Applioail Tex rate . . 025 0.25
(2649} X
Diffarance in Tax rate . . . 25,73 {3.99))
: (2,68} 34.63
BALANCE SHEET SEATEMENT CF PRO 088
Your andod March Year onded Rarch-
Deforre LiabRitles Comptlses of ¢ As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021 31,2022 31,2027
Aoselarated Dapraciation for Tax purposes . ' 3437 35,02 11.55)
Expenges allowsble on Payment bagls . (11.904. {11.881 {0.04)
Gthara . - 9.4 | {0.04
- 22.47 2499 {1.83})
Recancllfation of Deferrad Tax Liability {Net)
-Opening Batance . 24.08 36.43
-Defarrad Tax Charge Created during the year : 1.68) (15.4)
-Deforrod Tax craditad during tho yaar . - ) -
-Closing Betance ‘ 2248 ' H 2440
i NGTE -{156 CURRENT BORROWINGS
Gredit Card Balancos
HDRG Bank Cradt Card - 8,00 . : 750
Amerlcan Expresa Gorporata Card | 24.04 . 2091
Indusind Credit Card . T . 20,88 B2.70 18.34 4876
SECURED LOANS (WORKING CAPITAL}
From Beirka -
-Caah Credit - IGIGE Bank Lid. 74.IT - 382,00
Current Maturitlor of Long Term Borrowlngs
- HDFG Bank Vehical Loan 417 8.04
- 1CICH Bank Etd, Covid Loan . t e 12.50
-~ Kolak Mahlndra Prime Lid Vehical Losn 489 5
~SIDBI Covid Loan - . . - . ' 416 .
- giDoBi 28.34) I5.5¢ 43.25 T286
462,07 609.81
Note! ‘ ) '
Security:

1) Tha Cash Credit imft avall from ICIC| Bank Iid |a fully sscured by hypolheoahon of U1e company's entire alock of R,aw Malerlals, semi finished and finished goode, consumsbie storea an

apares end such olher movables inchuding book debis, bills whethar o y or clean, ouletanding moriies, Hes, bath present end fubure, In a form and manner satisfactoy

E) Tho Worklng capitel s fusther secured by Equitable mongags, in a form and manner safislactory lo bank, onthe lnduslmat proporty owned by company at C-179, Fotal peint,
ucthiana,

Guarantaa:

1) Cash Creditimit Is sacurad by personal guarantes of Mr Afay Kumar { Dirsolar), Mz, Anin Kumer D\mctur) & Mr. Ashish Socd { Direcicr)




" KUMAR AUTOCAST LTD

(Rs in Lacs)

The amount due o Micro

' NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
- . ASAT
AS AT 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
NOTE - 16 TRADE PAYABLE . o
Qutstanding dues to Micro & Smali Enterprises 108.36 61.23
Qutstanding dues to other than Micro & Small Enterprises. 137.20 119.39
. B : 245.56 171.62
- Trade Payable Ageing Schedule (Current Year) . )
. Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars ‘Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years :
(i) MSME 108.38 - - - 108.36
{ii} Others 132.80 - - 4.40 - 137.20
- Trade Payable Ageing Scﬁedule {Previous Year} .
Outstanding for following perlods from due date of _payment
_Particulars Less than 1 | 1-2 years 2-3 years More. than 3 Total.
: vear : Ners

(1) MSME 61.23 - - - 61.23
(ji} Others- 105.99 - - 4.40 110.39 |
Note: :

and Small En%erpﬁsas'as defined in the " The Micro, Small and Medium Enterpriées Development Act, 2008" has béen determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. The disclosures refating to Micro and Small Enterprises as at 3tst

March, 2022 are as under :

Forthe year | For the year
ended 31st  |ended 31st
S No. Particulars : ‘ . March,2022  [March,2021
{i} The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year ) 108.36 61.23
{ii} The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year - -
{iiy The amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment { which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day curing the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act - -
(v} . The amournt of inferest accrued during the vear and remaining unpaid at the end of the vear - -
. . "] i 108.36 61.23

Note:

1) Trade payabie include due to related parties NIL. { March 31,2021 NIL)
2) Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 to 90 days.
3). Trade payabie are non interest bearing.




KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED |
'NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

- NOTES TO ACCOUNTS o ' e B ' {Rs in Lacs)
' ' : ' AS AT -~ ASAT

. 31.03.2022 ‘ 31.03.2021

NOTE - 17 OTHER FINANCIAL LIARILITIES

Other Payable ' : 11947] 225.74
Sundry Payables S : : 38.59  139.58
Audit Fee Payable . . ‘ o 0.52
Statutory Audit Fee Payable | | . | 0.44 0.22
Electricity Exp. Payable 12.73 14.87
Expenses Payable _ : 1.931 _ 0.42
interest accrued but notdue - : ' _ 0.30 0.64
Insurance Fund Payable - ' : ' o . . 0.03| 0.04
Cheques.issued but not yet cleared . . 22.89 122.58
Security Deposit Receipt S . 0.15 0.15
. Telephone Exp. Payable . ' _ : 042 . 0.12
Employee Benefits Payable ‘ . | _ ' - 80.58 86.16
Director remuneration Payable’ | ' _ ' _ o 19.03 19.08
Bonus Payable a A : o ‘ 16.85 ©17.37

' Leave with wages Payable S o 14.74 ' 14.35
Wages & Salary 'Pa.yab|e ' ' o 29.97 35.35
119.17 225.74

. NOTE - 18 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS . C- 0.06

Stafutory Dues Payable _ ' : 20.87 3413
E.S.|. Payable _ ' e _ 1.06 | 1.29
Pension Fund Payable : _ s . 038] ‘ 0.69
Provident Fund Payable _ B 0.88 1.47
Professional Tex o ' 0.06 008
GST payable : - ' C _ 1482 2117
TDS Payable , ' _ . Y14 8.49
TCS Payable ‘ B L : : 0.01 0.50
Punjab Labour Weffare Fund Payable .~ . - - . o039 045

20.87 " 3449

NOTE- 19 SHORT TERM PROVISION, _ | o
Acturial Value of Gratuity Liability - _ ' 28.68 12.23

28.68 | 12.23

ﬁlri/. ) -
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KUMAR AUTOGAST LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS . {Rs in Lacs}
: : Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
NOTE - 20 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS '
Sales ' 4306.59 3793.00}§
Gross Revenhe from O_peratiohs 4306.59 3793.00
NOTE - 21 CTHER INCOME
Interest Income 5,24 . 6.48
Cash Discount .59} . 0.21
5.83 6.69
NOTE - 22 COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED
Raw Material Consumed ' 3009.02 2236.66
3009.02 2236.66
NOTE - 23 CHANGE IN INVENTORlEs OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS & STOCK-IN-TRADE
"Opening Stock
Finished Goods 55.48 2243
Others Materials ) 46.44 63.98]
101.92 86.41
Closing Stock . '
Finished Goods 32.68 55.48
Others Materials 58.59] 46.44
91.27] 104.92
Net ' 10.65 -15.51




KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED -

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARGH 31, 2022

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS {Rs in Lacs)
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
NOTE - 24 EMPLOYEES BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salary, Wages & Bonus 479.42 467.75
Gratuity Expenses 10.65 10.15
Contribution to PF & Other Funds 21.24 24.85
Staff Welfare Expenses 8.30 8.17
TOTAL 519.61 510.93]
NOTE - 25 FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expenses 32.33} 37.78
 Other Borrowing Costs 5.66 9.15
TOTAL 37.99] 46.94
NOTE - 26 OTHER EXPENSES
Auditors Remuneration 0.68 0.20
Commission 26.94 18.33
Director's Remuneration 126.00 132.83
" Electricity Expense 532.83 528.20
- Freight (Outward) 11.21 3.90
Insurance Exp. 3.31 - 3.96
Legat & Professional‘Charges 8.60 6.08
Listing Fee Expenses 0.55 1.02
Loss on sale of Fixed Asset - 413
Machinery Repair | 21.03 18.51
Medical expense 4.56 -
Mis_c. Expenses 16.80 15.02
Pénalty and Fines - 10.02.
~ Rebate & Discount 0.14 21.94
. Reént Rates & Taxes 7.06 5.88
Repair & Maint. 20.46 28.71
ROC Charges 0.01 375]
Sundry Balances w/off 1.80 -
Testing Cha_rges 0.47 - 0.01
| Travelling & Conveyance (Others) 2.07 599
Vehicle Expenses ' .‘:ﬁ

~TOTAL




KUMAR AUTOCAST LIMITED, LUDHIANA.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
Note No. 27

27.1 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

A) Contingent I‘iabilitieé (to the extent not provided for) {Amount Rs in Lacs}
Particulars ' As at 31.03.2022 | As at 31.03.2021
Liability towards Bank against - 246.85" 286.99
Bank Guarantee availed x -
Others : - ‘ -
Total ' . L K 246.85 286.99

*Bank Guarantee given by the company' to Environmental éngineer Punjab Pollution Centrol Board,
Ludhiana of Rs.1 Lakh and Modern Coach Factory Raebarelli Rs. 245.85 lacs

B) Commitments: NIL

. €) Undrawn Committed borrowing faclhty

The Company has availed working capital limits amounting to Rs 1,000 lacs (March 31, 2021
Rs 1,000 Lacs) from I{CIC| Bank, amount of Rs. 625.23 Iacs {(March 31, 2021 Rs 617.91 Lacs)
remain undrawn as at March 31, 2022.

D) Other Litigation: NIL
E) Leases: NIL

7 F) Contingent Asset: NIL

27.2 Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-19 “Employee Benefits” (specified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2015) are given

- below:

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the year is as under:

(Rs in Lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Employer’s Contnbutlon towards Provident ' 3.68 4.27
Fund (PF) '
Leave encashment : 17.82 | 16.63
Employer's Caontribution towards Employee 10.79 10.85
State Insurance (ESI)
Pension Fund 5.74 8.54




Defined Benefit Plan
- The employees’ Gratuity Fund Scheme which is a defined benefit plan, is managed by the

' Company itself. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five

years of service usually gets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn salary for each
" compléted year of service. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial
~ valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit
separately to build up the final obllgatlon The following tables summarise the components of
“net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and

amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans: -

a) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

Year ended ~ Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value obligation as at beglnnlng 47.11 o 1910
of the year : : B} :
Interest cost L 2.98 1.18
Current Service Cost ' ' 7.66 8.97
Benefits paid ' (6.14) : (3.26)
Remeasurement of (Ga:n)li_oss ' o
- Experience Adjustment ' (2.23) 21.00
- Difference in Present Value of (2.09) 1.12
Obligation _ ' ‘ .
Present value of obligation as at ciose of 47.29 : 47.11
the year _ : ‘ :

b) Reconciliation of openmg and closmgbalances of falr value of plan assets

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Fair value of pian assets at beginning of - -

' the year ' ‘ ' :

| Expected return on plan assets : AT -
Employer contribution - - _ -1 | -

Remeasurement of (Galn)/ioss in other ' : ' - ' -
comprehensive income '

Return on plan assets excluding interest | - | -
income

Benefits paid = . - - ~ ' -

Fair value of plan assels at yearend - - ‘ : -

c) Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Fair vaiue of plan assets : - L -

Present value of defined benefit obllgation 47.29 4711

Amount recognised in Balance Sheet— Asset / © (47.29) ;- (47.11)
: (Llablllty)

¢

<<f FRN:000497N
* | LUDHIANA




d) Net defined beneflt expense (Recogmsed in the Statement of profit and loss for the |

year)

, Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Service Cost . 7.66 8.97
Net Interest Cost 2.98 1.18
Net defined benefit expense debited to 10.64 10.15
statement of profit and loss
e} Remeasurement (gain)/ loss recogmsed in other comprehenslve income

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021

Remeasurement of (Gain)/Loss

- | March 31, _2022

21.00

- Experience Adjustment (2.23)
- Difference in Present Value of Obligation (2.10) 0.1
Recognised in other comprehensive income (4.33) 21.11
f) Principal assumptlons used in determining defined benefit obligation ‘
: "Year ended Year ended

: March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Mortality Table IAL 2012-14 Ultimate | 1AL 2012-14 Ultimate
imputed rate of Interest (D) _7.24% p.a. 6.76% p.a. |
tmputed rate of interest (IC) 6.76% p.a. 6.75% p.a.
Salary Escalation 5.00% p.a. 7.00% p.a.

Attrition Rate

0/20/60.00% p.a.

00/50.00% p.a.

_g) Quantitative sensitivity analysss for significant assumptlons is as below

Year ended Year ended

, March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Increase / {decrease) on present value of defined -
benefits obligations at the end of the year
Discount Rate ‘ ‘ .
Increase by 1% - {0.59) (0.73)
Decrease by 1% 0.62 0.76
Salary Increase _
increase by 1% 0.63 0.75
Decrease by 1% {0.61) (0.74)
Aftrition Rate
Increase by 1% (0.01) (0.09)
Decrease by 1% 0.01 0.10
i) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation ‘
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting 30.26 | 12.49
period) ‘ ‘ L
Between 2 and 5 years 18.82 39.15




Between 5 and 10 years - : - 1.95 ‘ 1.07

| Above 10 years . | — . 1.53 & " 0.04

1. The estimates of rate of escalation in salary consideredin actuana[ valuation are after
taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including
supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is as certified
by the Actuary.

2. Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities
as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations. ‘

3. The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that
extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes
in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

- 27.3 Segment Reporting

The Company has one Operating segment as identified by the Chief decision maker of
the company in accordance with Ind AS-108, “Operating Segment’ (specified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2015). Therefore, no additional disclosure is required to be given.

27.4 The related parties as per the terms of Ind AS-24,” Related Party Disclosures”, (specified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2015) are disclosed below: -

_ a) Details of Related Parties:

Sr. No | Particulars . .| Name of Related Parties
1 Enterprises in which 1. Kumar Exports
directors are | 2. Kumar Export Industries Pvt. Ltd.
interested '
2 Key Management 1. Sh. Arun Kumar Sood (Managing Director)
Personnei 2. Sh, Ajay Kumar Sood (Director)
3. Sh. Ashish Kumar Sood (Director)
4. Sh. Shrey Bhutani {Independent Director)
5. Sh. Rakesh Dhanda (Independent Director)
-6. Sh. Aravind Prasad (Independent Director)
7. Smt. Neha Sood {(Woman Director).
8. Sh. Pranav Khanna {(Company Secretary) _
9. Smt. Usha Jayaprakash { Chief Financial Officer)




27.5 Corporate Sociat Respons:bmty
The provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 are not appllcabie

Therefore, no disclosure i is required to be made under thls clause

27.6 Fair Value Measurements

b) Transactions with the Related Parties: {Rs. in Lacs)
Nature of Transactions durmg Enterprises which | Key Management
the year directors are interested Personnel

: 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
Purchases/Labour Job  from ~ 369.50 228.66 - mm=
Kumar Exports ' ‘

Sales to Kumar Exports 2299.86 1851.84 - —
Remuneration

Ashish Kumar Sood — - 42 45.87
Ajay Kumar Sood . -— 42 45.87
Arun Kumar Sood - ~= 42 45.87 |
Pranav Khanna -—- — 2.35 2.12
Lalit Kumar Jha (Former CFQO) — — - 2.82
Usha Jayaprakash (Current 5.41 -
CFQ)

Medical Reimbursement ‘

Ashish Kumar Sood - -— 0.51 0.86
Alay Kumar Sood -—- - 3.24 1.52
_Arun Kumar Sood - — 0.82 1.40
Amount Receivable -

Kumar Exports 1067.98 023.79 -— —
Amount Payable

Kumar Exports — . - —n
Ashish Kumar Sood - — —- 6.51 8.13
Aiay Kumar Sood - e - 8.43 8.13
Arun Kumar Sood . i 6.09 8.13

| Pranav Khanna . 0.37 0.32

_Lalit Kumar Jha - 0.42
Usha Jayaprakash 0.66 —

on company.

~ Set out below, is the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the

Company’s Financial Instruments, other than those with carrymg amounts that are reasonable

approximations of fair values:




Financial Instruments by |- Carrying Value . Fair Value
category - ' . :
As at March | As at March | AsatMarch | As at March
. 31,2022 31,2021 31,2022 | - 31,2021
Financial Assets at '
amortised cost
Other Financial Assets 73.24 76.68 - 73.24 76.68
{(Non-Current) . . ‘ : .
Trade Receivables 1337.89 1367.67 1337.89 1367.67
(Current and Non- |
| current) _ : _
Cash & Cash- 152.96 332.46 152.96 332.46
Equivalents ' : :
Financial Liabilities at
amortised cost ‘
Borrowings 489.59 607.48 | 489.58 607.48
Trade Payables. ' 241.16 171.62 . 24116 171.62
Other Financial 119.17 22574 119.17 '225.74
Liabilities (current) ‘

‘The fair value of financial a.sse'ts and liabilities is included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The followmg methods and assumptions were used to estimate the -
fair values:

The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well
as other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using
rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In
addition to being sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the forecast cash flows or the
discount rate, the fair value of the equity instruments is also sensitive to a reasonably possible -
change in the growth rates. The valuation requires management to use unobservable inputs
in the model, of which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below.
Management regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those
significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value.

The fénr- values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by
using discounted cash flow method using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate
~ as at the end of the reporting period. :

Long-term receivables/payables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as
interest rates, risk factors, and individual creditworthiness of the counterparty and the risk
- characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken tnto
account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.

The Stgniflcant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31
March 2022, are as: shown below




Fair value'hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determmlng and disclosing the fa;r value of

fmancza! instruments by valuation technique:

- Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly..

Level 3: techniques that use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value that are not based on observable market data.

Quantitative drsclosures of fair vg_l_ge measurement hierarchy as on March 31t 2022

- Carrying Value Fair Value
March 31 2022 | Level1| Level2 Level 3
Financial Assets at amortised cost 3 -
Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) . 73.24 - - 73.24
Trade Receivables 1337.89 - - 1337.89
Cash & Cash Equavafents 152.96 | - - 152.96
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost S - - ‘
| Borrowings 489.59 - - 489.59
Trade Payables 241.16 - - 241.16
Other Financial Liabilities (current) 119.17 - - 119.17
Quantitative‘disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy as on March 31%t, 2021
Carrying Value _ Fair Value
, , March 31,2021 | Level1| Level2| Level3
Financial Assets at amortised cost : o
Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) 76.68 - - 76.68
Trade Receivables 1367.67 - - | 1367.67
Cash & Cash Equivalents 332.46 - - 332.46
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost e -
Borrowings 607.48 - - 607.48
Trade Payables 171.62 - - 171.62
Other Financial Liabilities (Current) 225.74 - - 22574}
- 27.7 Earnings per share _
_ Amount Rs in lacs) .
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Basic Earnings per share

Numerator for earnings per share




- Profit after taxation -116.19 114.61
Denominator for earnings per share '

- Weighted number of equity shares outstanding (Nos. in 103.74 103.74
lacs) during the year

Earnings per share-Basic (one equity share of Rs (1.06) .1.10
10!- each) (Amount in Rs)

Diluted Earnings per share

Numerator for earnings per share

- Profit after taxation -110.19 114.61
Denominator for earnings per share

- Weighted number of equity shares outstandlng (Nos. in 103.74 103.74
lacs) during the year

Earnings per share-Diluted (one equity share of Rs (1.086) 1.10

10/- each) (Amount in Rs)

27.8 Capital Management

For the purposes of Company’s capital management, Capital includes equity attributable fo
the equity holders of the Company and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the
Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and
maximize shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To. maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
‘payment to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or pracesses for managing capital durlng the year ended March 31, 2022 and March

31,2021

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capltal
pius net debt. The Company s policy is to keep the gearing ratio between 15 to 35%.

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Loans and borrowings (Net of Cash and - 336.63 . 275.02
Cash Equwalents)

Net Debt . 336.63 275.02
Equity 1232.88 1339.82
Total Capital 1232.88 1339.82
Capital and Net Debt 1569.51 1614.84
Gearing ratio (Net DethCapltaI and Net 21.45% 17.03%
Debt) _ )

27.9 Financial risk management objectives and policies

| The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial aesets include loans,




trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its
operations. - - :

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its |
business strategies. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior
professionals working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk
governance framework for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors and Audit
Committee. This process provides assurance to Company’s senior management that the
Company'’s financial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures
“and that financial risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company
policies and Company risk objective. |

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
- which are summarized as below:

(a)  Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair vaiue of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: .
currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and
~commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include loans and
borrowings, deposits, investments and foreign currency receivables and payables. The
sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31 2022. The
analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on; the carrying values of
gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and
liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed
changes in the respective market risks. This. is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held as of March 31, 2022. '

{b) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
. changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s short term debt obligation
at floating interest rates. The Company's Term loan outstanding as at March 31, 2022

.comprise of fixed rate loans and accordingly, are not expose to risk of fluctuation in market
interest rate. o

{c) Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk that the counter. party will not meet its obligation under a finahéial
“instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit




risk from its operating activities (plrima‘rily trade receivables) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

(i) Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the company based on its established policy, procedures
and control reiating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables
are regularly monitored and any shipments to major customers are generally reviewed
* regularly by the management of the company ‘ :

An impairment analysis is performed at -each reporting date on trade receivables by lifetime
expected credit loss method based on provision matrix. The maximum exposure to credit risk
at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company
does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with
respect to frade receivables as low.

(ii) Financial instruments and cash depdsits

Credlt risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company in
accordance with the policy.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at
31 March 2022 is the carrying amounts. The Company’s maximum exposure relating to
financial instruments is noted in liquidity table below. Trade Receivables and other financial
assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor
failing to engage in the repayment plan with the Company.

Particulars ' .ﬁ | As at March | As at March
‘ ’ 31 2022 31 2021

‘Financial assets .for which. allowance is
measured using 12 months Expected Credit
Loss Method (ECL) :
Cash & Cash Equivalents o . 152.96 332.46
Other Non-Current financial assets e - - 73.24 76.68
Financial assets for which allowance is ‘
measured using Life time Expected Credlt
Loss Method (ECL) .
Trade Receivable | : 1337.89 1367.67

Balances with banks are subject to low credit rlsks due to good credit ratings assigned to
these banks. : _

The ageing analysis of trade receivables has been considered from the date the invoice falls
due.




Particulars As at March 31 2022 | As at March 31 2021
0 to 180 Days due 1335.10 1360.01
past due date

More than 180 days 2.79 - 7.66
past due date g

Total : 1337.89 o 1367.67

(d)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its
obligations on time or at reasonable price. The Company’s objective is to at all imes maintain
optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and liquidity requirements. The Company closely
monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains
adequate source of financing through the use of short-term bank deposits and cash credit
facility. Processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.
Management monitors the Comipany’s liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis
of expected cash flows. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to its
debt and concluded it to be low. ' ‘

Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The table below provides the details regarding the remaining contractual maturitiés of financial
liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments.

As at March 31,2022 Less than 1 Year More than 1 Year ' Total
Borrowings. : - 462.97 o 26.62 ; 489.59
Other Current Financial 11917 | _ - 11917 |
Liabilities: '

Trade Payables 241.18 - , '241.16 |
As at March 31,2021 Less than1 Year| More than 1 Year Total-
Borrowings 501.81 | ' 105.67 607.48
Other Current Financial | - 225.74 - 225,74
Liabilities ' - '

Trade Payables 171.62 - 171.62 |

27.10 The balances of Trade Receivables, Loans & Advances, Deposits and Trade Payables
are subject to confirmation/ reconciliation and subsequent adjustments if any.

27.11 In opinion of the Board, ail the current assets, loans & advances have the value on

realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal fo amount at which they are
stated. o ‘
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27.12 The company enjoys revenue from sale of single product and segment of cost resulting.

There is no disaggregation of revenue and hence no disclosures are being made
separately. '

27.13 Additional Information

0]

(ii)
(il
(iv)
0

‘ (\}i)

- {vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Details of Benami Property held . '

As per information provided by the management, no proceedings have been initiated
during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohlbitron) Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

The company has no such immovable prcperties whose title deeds are not held in the
name of the company and no such immovable property is jointly held with others. The
company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment during the year.

The Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets, Monthly returns or statements of current assets filed by the -
Company and are in agreement with the books of accounts.

Wiiful Defaulter
The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financiai Institution
or other lender. -

Relatlonshlp with Struck off Companies
The company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

- Registration of charges or satisfaction With Registrar of Companies

All charges or charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companles have been made on
time.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
Provisions of restrictions on number of layers prescribed under clause (87)of section 2

- of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on humber of Layers) Rules, 2017, are not
applicable on the company, as the company has no subsidiary.

Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
The company has never been involved in the Scheme of Arrangements in terms
of sections 230 to 237.of the Compames Act, 2013. : -

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:
(a) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or

‘ ent:ty(les) including foreign entities (Intermediaries). ‘The company has not prowded
any guarantee security or the like to any person or entity

(b) The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity (ies}, mcludmg.




foreignentities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
_or otherwise). Further the company has not received any guarantee, security or the
like any guarantee, security or the like to any person or entity

(x) Undisclosed income
- The Company has no such transactions unrecorded i in the books of accountsthat
has been surrendered or disclosed as income. durmg the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

(xi) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
 Where the Company has not traded or mvested in- Crypto currency or Virtual
Currency duringthe financial year. :

| (xii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be reglstered with Registrar of Companies
beyond the statutory perlod :

27 13 Previous year amounts have been reclassmed wherever necessary to confirm with
current year presentation. :

"FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ‘ .

 ARUN KU

AJAY KUMAR SOOD
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN- 00685937 " DIN- 00685585 -
| \\ v "
PLACE: LUDHIANA A/ | (rave
DATED: 30.05.2022 . USHA JAYAPRAKSH PRANAV KHANNA

- CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY
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